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Zhundiin Saamba Ndhzha Edjhtl’éh
Ndehdhé Hoélj
K’¢é Nadéhthizha T’ah
Nahj) Dehcho Gah Got’j¢ Thidl)
Nddaditse T ah
Edi1 Gond1 Ndehdhé Kait’¢

Nahy, Dehcho Géh Got’jg-ke, ddodéhthaa Nahendehé
k’eh ait’j t’0h gots’e¢h ddondu edets’¢ k’atdéh eniddhe
gots’eh ddondu meghdadé Dene thidly k’¢¢ aut’i
eniddhe ghdadé goidih 4 ait’é.

Nahendehé k’eh ndeh gots’e¢h tu zhagyl;, ddodéhthaa
Dene idlé t’¢h gots’e¢h, kéda tagli nahets’¢h zoh
azhajt’é. Nohtsy, nahendehé gots’¢h tu k’¢hthidih gha
€jo ninah6nidhah 4 ahthit’e.

Zhundii, 1899 gots’¢h 1921, ekiih Saamba Nalée-ke,
Dene kéhle thah edets’¢ k’aidéh ahthit’e k’¢¢
naheghdgenda t’dh nezy nahendehé k’eh nahéh
gogundih gha nahéh edjht’éh ndehdhé géhtsy ilé.
Dene thah edets’é k’aogedéh zoh dile edjhtl’¢h
ndehdhé elehéh gedetl’éh. Ezhi t’dh, Saamba Nélée-ke
zoh duyé thahne ezhi1 edihtt’éh ndehdhé gulix
anagedleh.

No6hts; ddondin nahendehé k’eh gudih gha ninahdnila
ghaadé, duye nahendehe editsi. Dehcho zhieh, Dene
Nahenatthee  Zhadéhtth’i-ke,  nahecho  gozhatié
t’ahogedehth;, ezh1 ghdddé duh gots’¢h zhundaa
dédodéhthaa Dene thidly gots’¢ xdadé met’ah edets’¢
k’atudéh gha gond thits).

Duhdzgh, Dene kéhle 1ié¢ kadeza zoh athit’e gots’¢h
Nahendehé kaa see ehtth’t nahets’¢h ot’e eniddhe t’ah
nddaditse gots’¢h Nahendehé k’eh edets’é k’audéh
did.

Nahy;, Dehcho Gah Got’je, nddaditse t’ah Dene
nahenatthee zhadéhtth’1-ke gots’ddadidu.

Chia lidéh Zaa 19, 1993, K ‘dgee Tu Nahendéh Gha Edihtt’éh
Ndehdhé Ts’ehts 1

Declaration of Rights
Dehcho First Nation

We the Dene of the Dehcho have lived on our
homeland according to our own laws and system
of government since time immemorial.

Our homeland is comprised of the ancestral territo-
ries and waters of the Dehcho Dene. We were put
here by the Creator as keepers of our waters and
lands.

The Peace Treaties of 1899 and 1921 with the non-
Dene recognize the inherent political rights and
powers of the Dehcho First Nation. Only sover-
eign  peoples can make treaties with each other.
Therefore our aboriginal rights  and titles and
oral treaties cannot be extinguished by any Euro-
Canadian government.

Our laws from the Creator do not allow us to cede,
release, surrender or extinguish our inherent
rights. The leadership of the Dehcho upholds the
teachings of the Elders as the guiding principles
of Dene government now and in the future.

Today we reaffirm, assert and exercise our inher-
ent rights and powers to  govern ourselves as a
nation.

We the Dene of the Dehcho stand firm behind our
First Nation government.

Declaration was adopted at Kakisa, Denendéh. August 19,
1993
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Grand Chief Report
By Samuel Gargan, Grand Chief

Leadership comes in many forms. Some are driven by knowl-
edge and others by issues and mandates. Still others desire to
make a difference. Let me begin by thanking all our Dehcho
members in supporting me in becoming your Grand Chief, and
the former Grand Chief, Gerald Antoine, for carrying the organi-
zation forward while waiting for the outcome of the new Grand
Chief.

The current year 2009 marks the 16™ anniversary since we
signed the “Dehcho Declaration”. This declaration expresses
our position and relationship with the rest of the country and the
world. This is a relation based on compassion and human dignity.

Let us honour those that started this struggle, this movement, our Great Leaders, Elders, parents and
friends that we buried. They all had hopes and dreams they passed onto us, in turn those hopes and
dreams is what lead us here today.

Our Dehcho Process should be a shining example for people the world over to witness, by working to-
gether, in cooperation and in a spirit of co-existence.

I have worked with the Nahehcho (Elders) all my life with them as a group, first with Dene Nation, then
the Dehcho First Nations. Listening to them, analyzing their comments and issues is not easy. No mat-
ter how it comes out; there is always a message and meaning. This is why the subject of the Treaties is

such an important part in resolving the land issue.

In 1973, Judge Morrow travelled to every community in Denendeh, listening to witnesses and Elders to
provide testimony about the events surrounding the Treaties signed. He made a ruling based on the
sworn testaments. What Judge Morrow did not do was read into the testimony, perhaps that is why there
was only a partial ruling.

In 1899-1921, what did our Fore-Fathers truly hear and understand? What did it mean? What impression
did the Bishop, the Indian Agent and the Métis translation make? Was it correct?

I believe the Crown never intended the Treaties to diminish our relationship with the land nor our sover-
eignty. Treaty 8-11 is designed for British subjects to live on ceded land meaning only those lands occu-
pied were considered ceded land. When it stated, "You will continue to live the way you have always
did practicing your language and culture," It openly recognized our sovereignty and the right to exercise
it. Clearly there was misunderstanding, misinterpretation, misled and misguided events and these errors
is what the government need to correct.

Dehcho First Nations @ www.dehcho.org
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The word "Reconciliation” What does it mean? It means anything else other than true reconciliation is
unconstitutional, because the first principle of constitutional law is, the rule of law. Reconciliation is
correcting blatant disregard for Aboriginal and Treaty Rights. We have a moral and ethical duty to make
things right.

The system of governance that has worked for First Nations since time immemorial has been cast aside,
deemed inappropriate and not up to their standard. Look at the sad state our environment is in today.

I have been with the Negotiation Team since 2004. In that time, | have not seen much negotiation, just
ultimatums by Canada and the GNWT.

As we all know, the Chief Federal Negotiator is also negotiating with two of our groups within our Na-
tion; Acho Dene Koe and Katlodeeche First Nation. This is making it extremely difficult for our team

because the process is driven by his knowledge of positions from each table. It may seem transparent;

however, that is an illusion of misconception for his accountability will depend on his knowledge each
table has and use it. This will weaken all three processes.

In our Dene Culture, self-reliance comes from our economy. Our Self-Determination comes from our
way of life; therefore, Self-Government comes from both. We come to realize our society is based on
two orders, the natural order and the social order.

What Self-Government is under section 35 of the Canada Constitution? What it does not mean is mu-
nicipal government nor does it mean Indian Act government.

While | agree there are flows, we must agree to allow the government the opportunity to reconcile our
differences

Land Quantum

The March 24th 2009 offer was 45,810 kmz2 surface and subsurface reduce to 39,336 kmz2 and capital
transfer of $104,000,000 reduced to $89,302,029. We still have the population base that requires
70,000 km2 and a capital transfer well over $300,000,000.

In discussing land quantum, we get an uneasy feeling for it also means we are talking about land selec-
tion. After countless heartfelt discussions, the Assembly reluctantly agreed to continue negotiations
based on a process to retain land. What does that mean for us? For some it will be seen as a violation of
the direction of our Nahehcho (Elders), which is not to give up any of our land. Does it really mean
that? We say we own the land, but do we control it?

As of now, Canada makes all the decisions about how the land is managed. Only sometimes they con-
sult us. We did not have a say on infrastructure or development. The more we allow development, the
more we release cede and surrender. If we were to complete our process now, many of those things will
change.

We want control of our land. We have our Treaties, our Land Use Plan of 2006, our Protected Areas
Strategy, and we now have the expanded Nahanni National Park, a great achievement indeed. These are
tools that will help us manage our lands through our Dehcho Self Government and our Resource Man-
agement Authority. We also have ongoing rights to use all Dehcho lands for traditional harvesting and
cultural practices.

Dehcho First Nations
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The Creator holds the deed to the land and has placed us here as stewards. Land selection should be
view as another tool of caretaking. It is another blanket that will be spread over portions of the Dehcho
Territory to enable us to protect it and use it for the good of seven generations. We are always reminded
this is a land management agreement not a land sale. Retained lands will give us full authority and com-
plete power to determine what happens on those lands. The will give us a stronger management tools.

In our discussions with Canada, we need enough land for our increasing population, economic self-
sufficiency, and more importantly, enough land mass for a Dehcho Government to feel secure and cer-
tain about the future. In our vision for seven generations we expect our Dene population to be 25,000
by 2509.

In this century, where our environment is being destroyed and devastated, the very ground we walk on,
the water we drink and the air we breathe, threatens to make us ill; rather than it being a source of our
health and well being. Resolving the land issue is becoming a critical issue at this point in our Dene his-
tory.

The intention of the Leadership is to have a central organization with a role in running our Dehcho Gov-
ernment. This should start acting as one of three orders of government by exercising our jurisdictions
and collectively making decision on where our priorities are. We need to recognize we need each other
as we move forward. The first structure change should be to the Executive Committee. The Executive
Committee could be phased out to replace it with a Standing Committee on Dehcho Operation and a
Special Committee on Dehcho Government operations.

With good cooperation, management and conservation practice, we should not have to exchange, sacri-
fice and give what is morally ours at the detriment of future generation. As leaders of your Nation and
people, we all have dreams, ambition, and know what is best for our family, our children and our people;
we all desire to create opportunities, employment and wealth. We must think beyond our community to
the good of the whole Dehcho First Nations. This is what collective is all about.

As a First Nation Government our traditional practice to achieve goals and objectives is based on con-
sensus decisions. | am proposing we have the following scheduled meetings before Christmas to collec-
tively set a course:

Leadership Caucus

Nahehcho (Elders) and Harvester Gathering

Youth Conference

Regional Economic Development Forum

A Special Assembly — To change our By-laws and Constitution
Review past initiatives that have been abandoned

ok E

We all need the time to think things through and be transparent and accountable. This process is indeed
important, but they are not important by themselves. They are only important if they are put in conjunc-
tion with other matters.

The Framework Agreement, the Interim Measures Agreement, the Interim Resource Development and
the Settlement Agreement all belong at the negotiating table. We must not compromise the spirit and
intent of those documents. They must remain as signed with honour.
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We need to view the land as you would the air, the water, and the seasons; this is how our ancestors
thrived in the past. We all need these elements to thrive. Instead of thinking those elements are there to
be owned, exploited and manipulated, we should be viewing it as essential to our survival; therefore,
compromising just does not seem right. It is these ways of survival we are now struggling to correct.

We cannot isolate ourselves from the rest of the world and hope our lives will navigate into a prosperous
future. When First Nations people talk and write about their fundamental faith in human possibilities,
and the visions of possible futures, what strikes non-Aboriginal people is how far into the future Indige-
nous “social planning” looks. This is often expressed as planning for “seven generations”. When we
think about land use, resource, learning, social, and cultural planning development in these terms, we are
brought quickly to realize how short-term Canada’s vision is. In terms of economic planning, the future
is discounted and in this way resources and services, such as freshwater, have no value. Furthermore, as
resources grow scarce their value increases, this instead of conserving resources often leads to over ex-
ploitation.

The realization and use of Dehcho Lands will be contingent on the reorganization of our Aboriginal and
Treaty Rights, the Dehcho Land Use Implementation and our inherent right to govern ourselves. Those
are the elements outlined in our 21 Common Ground Principles, Framework, Interim Measures and Re-
source Development Agreement. These documents are our guides which will either make or break our
Dehcho Process. Is it achievable? Only time will tell.

In the mean time, let us go about governing ourselves and provide leadership for our people by creating
opportunities, training and prosperity in the Dehcho region. Let us begin to fully plan and discuss our
objectives. | have four years; let us start now to plan those four years that will benefit our Nahehcho
(Elders) Harvesters, Youth and membership in a positive way.

Mahsi Cho,

Samuel Gargan
Grand Chief
Dehcho First Nations
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Executive Director Report
By Ria Letcher, Executive Director

Dear Members,

The following is the 2009-2010 Operational plan which lays out the administra-
tive priorities for the Dehcho First Nations administration.

The Operational Plan was approved by the 2009 Annual General Assembly by
Motion # 09 25/June/2009.

The Dehcho First Nations is here to serve our member First Nations and members
at large. If there are any information needs please feel free to contact the Dehcho
First Nations administration at 1-866-995-3748 or e-mail us at dcfn@dehcho.org
You may also check out our website at www.dehcho.org.

Mabhsi Cho,

Ria Letcher
Executive Director

Dehcho First Nations /@ www.dehcho.org
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Dehcho First Nations Operational Plan

The Dehcho First Nation is a tribal level organization PROUDLY represents 12 member community
governments (10 First Nations and 2 Metis Locals). The Dehcho communities are connected through
language, cultural beliefs, practices, genealogy and principles.

Liidlii Kue First Nation; Fort Simpson Métis Local,
Deh Gah Got’ie Dene Council; Fort Providence Métis Local;
Sambaa K’e Dene Band; Nahanni Butte Dene Band;
Pehdzeh Ki First Nation; Jean Marie River First Nation;
Ka’a gee Tu First Nation; Katlodeeche First Nation;
West Point First Nation; and Begadee Shuhtagotine.
Mandate

The primary objective of the DFN is to regain our independence as a self-governing Nation of people,
based on our values customs and traditions. The philosophy, desires and ideals of our nation are in-
tended to set the stage for future generations to benefit from the wealth and health of our First Nations
people and Lands.

The Dehcho First Nation Dehcho Declaration is the guiding principles of the Dehcho Government.

We the Dene of the Dehcho have lived on our homeland according to our
own laws and system of government since time immemorial.

Our homeland is comprised of the ancestral territories and waters of the
Dehcho Dene. We were put here by the Creator as keepers of our waters and
lands.

The Peace Treaties of 1899 and 1921 with the non-Dene recognize the
inherent political rights and powers of the Dehcho First Nation. Only
sovereign peoples can make treaties with each other. Therefore our
aboriginal rights and titles and oral treaties cannot be extinguished by any
Euro-Canadian government.

Our laws from the Creator do not allow us to cede, release, surrender or
extinguish our inherent rights. The leadership of the Dehcho upholds the
teachings of the Elders as the guiding principles of Dene government now
and in the future.

Today we reaffirm, assert and exercise our inherent rights and powers to
govern ourselves as a nation.

We the Dene of the Dehcho stand firm behind our First Nation government.

The political movement regarding land and governance negotiations is evolving with pressures from the
Government of Canada to enter into a Comprehensive Claims negotiation.

The Dehcho Leadership is proceeding in a cautious manner with a mandate for exploratory discussions
towards a comprehensive claim. This direction has and will continue to be provided in the forums of
Leadership meetings and DFN Assemblies’.

www.dehcho.org /@ Dehcho First Nations
1" Annual Report 2008-2009



Annually Dehcho First Nation hosts an AGM, this occurs in June unless otherwise directed by leader-
ship. Special assemblies can also be convened to address specific issues. For this fiscal year DFN is
expecting to convene a Special Assembly to address Dehcho negotiations and other critical issues. The
notice for convening any Annual or Special Assembly is no less than fourteen (14) days before such An-

nual or Special Assembly.

Dehcho First Nations Leadership meetings are four times per year, one of which is the annual assembly.
Dependent upon issue Leadership can also be convened by teleconference. Sufficient notice (14 days)

must be provided to coordinate the activities and if required movement of peoples.

The required manner of DFN administration and leadership has been clearly identified and presented in

the form of Draft By-laws to be brought forth at our annual assemblies.

DEN Organization chart

The Dehcho First Nation administration consists of numerous personnel who have been recruited for
their skill level, abilities and is a dynamic team of professionals who strongly believe in the ideals of the
First Nations peoples. The members of our staff have a vested interest in realizing our objectives and
this is demonstrated through our commitment to the DFN Leadership and organization. We are a dedi-
cated, professional, versatile and passionate about working for the First Nations which places the health
of communities and the land first and foremost.

The DFN Executive Committee who is appointed by the Annual assembly every three years oversees the
financial and day to day administration of the organization. On a quarterly basis work plans and sched-
ules are presented to the Committee for review, consideration and approval. The Executive Committee
convenes every two months on administrative matters and by teleconference depending on the issues.

Grand Chief

Executive Assistant

Finance Manager —

Finance Clerk

Executive Secretary

Office Travel Manager [—

Administrative Secretary

Custodian

Executive Director

Chief Negotiator

AHRDA Coordinator

I
AHRDA Clerk

Negotiations Coordinator

Implementation Coordinator

ASEP Coordinator

Assistant Negotiator

Resource Management Coordinator

Senior Information Officer

Assistant Resource

2x-Information Officer

GIS Technician

Language Specialist

ARROM Coordinator — ARROM Technical

Negotiations Secretary
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Financial Management and Administration

The Executive Committee oversees along with the Executive Director, the financial management of the
organization. Leadership has directed that quarterly audits are undertaken to ensure strong financial
practices are consistent with the policies and Leadership direction.

Dehcho First Nations organization is primarily funded by the Government of Canada through tribal
council core funding and is funded annually with conditions. Dehcho Process Negotiations is also pri-
marily funded by the Government of Canada.

Where ever possible best efforts are made to access additional funding to supplement the work.
Budgets have been attached as supplements to this plan.
Governance

Dehcho First Nations governance negotiations have been consumed in the Comprehensive claims ex-
ploratory discussions.

DFN initial desires as per the negotiated Framework agreement are;
(a) implementing a Deh Cho government which will:
i. make laws and deliver programs and services;
ii. be a public government based upon Dehcho First Nations laws and customs and
other Canadian laws and customs;
iii. be the primary government for the delivery of programs and services to residents of
the Dehcho territory within the Northwest Territories;
(b) describing intergovernmental relationships and jurisdictions;
(c) providing for certainty and clarity of rights respecting land, resources and governance; and
(d) providing for the use, management and conservation of land, water and other resources, in-
cluding wildlife, fish and their habitat in the Dehcho territory.

With the onset of the comprehensive claims package that the Government of Canada is pressuring the
Dehcho First Nations into parameters that proves difficult for the communities to comprehend or imag-
ine where the final results of a government is built on such principles of have and have not. There have
been few successful examples of the Comprehensive Claim policy that builds healthier nations with
clear governance systems.

The DFN Negotiation team works closely with the Leadership in ensuring that DFN values, principles
and guidance are clearly reflected in the development of materials tabled for the purpose of advancing
our purpose.

The following is an excerpt from our application for negotiations funding proposal and this is a sum-
mary of the work that needs to be done to bring us closer to our objectives.

A need for “live” networking of Negotiations team to enhance communications.

A need for a Dehcho Constitution and Community Constitutions

A need to clarify status of Métis under a Dehcho (Final) Agreement.

A need to enhance initiatives for an effective system to communicate in Dene Zhatie and
English

Dehcho First Nations
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The lack of dedicated community resources to participate in Dehcho Process negotiations

Strategic planning and decision-making for Elders

Evaluation of land and resource issues for Leadership and community members

A need to resolve trans boundary and shared use lands issues

Evaluation of land and resources issues for Leadership and community members

Ability of community members and elders to review and comprehend detailed maps

Addressing resources and land issues and the competing resource development and conservation

issues which exist within the Dehcho Territory

e Need for Dehcho oil and gas policy, direction terms and conditions for petroleum development
under the Interim Resource Development Agreement

o Need to coordinate DFN participation and information learned with land and resource manage-
ment negotiations.

e Need for Dehcho oil and gas policy, directing terms and conditions of petroleum development
under the Interim Resource Development Agreement

e Need to identify exploration parcels for oil/gas and minerals.

e Negotiation of financing and resource revenue agreements.

e Continue to include community members in the development of positional papers re: jurisdic-

tion

Dehcho First Nations fully intends to;

e Continue to negotiate for the expansion of Nahanni National Park Reserve

o Develop position papers on Dehcho Métis issues

e Develop positional papers on Core Jurisdictions and continue negotiating the currently tabled
documents

e Dehcho First Nations staff and advisors will continue to develop briefings and option papers for
presentation to Leadership and community, meetings, as well as the Annual General Assem-
blies.

e Make available, key human and financial resources for communities to plan for and participate
in Dehcho Process negotiations

e Continue to translate Dene laws from syllabics to Dene Zhatie and English

e Assist Dehcho communities in developing community constitutions

Land and Resource Management

A tremendous amount of negotiating energy has gone into the Land and Resource management compo-
nent of our process. For the Dehcho First Nations this is the heart of the matter. As an independent First
Nations we have always been land owners and managers. The peace treaties of 1899 and 1921 are a tes-
tament to this fact.

The Dehcho First Nations approach to land and resource management is an approach that has brought us
international recognition and attention. David Suzuki and Justice Thomas Berger visited our annual as-
sembly and praised the Dehcho for their work on the Dehcho Land Use plan (LUP).

David Suzuki ““if the whole world followed the Dehcho First Nations example this world would be a
much better place to live”.
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Unfortunately the Canada and the GNWT do not share this perspective of balancing conservation and
Economic Development. The LUP is being revisited and revised to reflect government positions and
priorities. A special assembly may have to be convened to resolve and move this critical area forward.
The 2008 Annual Assembly will provide further clarification and direction in this area.

Economic Development

Through negotiated agreements Dehcho First Nation has been able to assist our membership in realizing
economic opportunities.

Future economic opportunities continue to arise through negotiations for land and access to Dehcho
lands. Dehcho First Nations administration and Leadership ensures that opportunities to its membership
are maximized in these processes.

The DFN Administration process has been advertising, awarding and administrating the allocations of
funds relating to Economic opportunities and growth.

Dehcho First Nations members have benefited from this economic stimulation. This is apparent in many
communities. Communities and members have been aligning themselves to benefit from the develop-
ment of Dehcho Lands and resources.

The Dehcho Economic Corporation and the Dehcho Master Trust are the vehicles through which we will
achieve economic self reliance.

The Dehcho Economic Corporation (DEC) provides an annual report to the Annual Assembly. Restruc-
turing of the DEC will clarify relationship to the Leadership in between assemblies.

The Master Trust also provides immediate economic opportunities to the Dehcho First Nations. The
Investment Management Board (IMB) oversee the administration and allocations of funds relating to
economic development. The IMB reports annually to the assembly.

Advisory Services

The Dehcho First nations administration serves as an advisory body to its members first nations. In pre-
vious years the administration worked closely with the communities in directing their advisory priorities.
DIAND has directed that the standard by which we have been operating is no longer acceptable. This
has pressured First Nations to maximize the use of advisory dollars from a regional perspective. Dehcho
First Nations administration will be meeting with First Nations administration (s) collectively to plan,
coordinate and orchestrate this directive. The plan will be forthcoming once it has been developed.
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2009 — 2010 Goals

¢ Increased communications between the regional office, DFN Leadership and administrative commit-
tees.

e Communications between the DFN administration, Leadership and membership by way of increas-
ing our bank of contact information and the management of that information in a database. Increas-
ing the rate at which we are able to respond to membership, Leadership and administrative concerns
or requests.

o DFN has over the years accumulated a tremendous amount of information. We are in the process of
archiving the information and storing off site the old files. This information is available for the
Dehcho members should they need to access it for any reason. We have also initiated a comprehen-
sive resource library.

e DFN Leadership is required to have knowledge and information in vast array of areas. Especially in
dealing with our Dehcho Process Negotiations and exploratory discussions with Canada. It is diffi-
cult to ensure that the information is ready and handy for easy reference in current hardcopy form.
DFN Administration would like to ensure that our Leaders have the most current information to as-
sist in their decision making. Current practice is that information is provided in hard copy. We
would like to begin the practice of providing information digitally on a flash drive so that it is easily
accessible and available to our Leaders. The Dehcho First nations website www.dehcho.org has all
of the DFN agreements, tabled documents and resolutions.

DFN WEBMASTER - Frederick Lepine QUOTATION

“By The Way, just so you guys know - | think you make better use of the
internet as a tool to reach out to your members probably more so than
any other First Nation in Canada, short of the AFN. The amount of
information you dispense to keeping the public informed on a weekly
basis is probably not paralleled by any other FN in Canada. You
should be proud of that.”

e DFN has invested in a management tool for our organization, the Aboriginal information systems
(AIS). AIS is a data base to assist First Nations in managing the many motions, resolutions, minutes
and membership. We have purchased the program last year and have recently begun data entering
the resolutions and membership. The program is designed so that our member First Nations can ac-
cess the information from their own communities and data enter pertinent information regarding
membership and community direction.
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e Optimal operation of the database will ensure complete information disclosure by DFN to its mem-
ber First Nations and vice versa pending the communities’ discretion. Information sharing is critical
to ensuring that we are consistent in our decision making.

e Dehcho First Nations legal registries
Dehcho First Nation is duly registered at the Territorial and Federal levels. Currently the documents
that are registered with the registrar do not reflect the realities of Dehcho First Nation governing
structures. This has prompted a necessary review of the by-laws initiated through resolutions of the
Spring Leadership 2008. First By—Law recommendation is to change the board of directors of the
Dehcho First Nations to the Leadership. Presently it is the Executive Committee of the organization
that is the listed board of Directors. The By-laws reviews are an 2008 Annual Assembly agenda
item.

e Leadership Administration
Dehcho First Nation’s Leadership meets seasonally four times per year. There are three scheduled
DFN Leadership meetings plus an Annual Assembly. If a critical issue shall arise Leadership will
chose to arrange a Special Assembly. As your administration we will do our best to ensure that as
much advanced information is made available prior to the meetings. This information can be pro-
vided in the form of emails or uploaded onto the website providing that it is not confidential. This is
enacted to ensure information is provided for advanced review.

In conclusion, the Dehcho First Nation administrations sole purpose is to serve as the vehicle through
which we will regain our independence as a nation through negotiations and subsequent implementation.

The headquarters of Dehcho First Nation is an asset to the members of the ten communities. We con-
tinually strive to do the best we can in ensuring that we serve the communities in the areas that are re-
quired. DFN has established an open and transparent process for the benefits of our membership.
Please feel free to frequent our administrative headquarters you will find strong coffee and smiling
faces.
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Appendix 1
Draft Advisory Services Work Plan 2009-2010

DFN Managers Meeting
September 2008

Workshop Results

The September 2008 DFN Managers” Workshop was successful in identifying needs throughout the re-
gion that could be addressed by advisory services funding to be managed by Dehcho First Nations. In
attendance administrators from Fort Providence, Wrigley, Jean Marie, Trout Lake, Nahanni Butte and
Fort Simpson. Support services were identified by the communities, see attachment, and with the funds
available this fiscal year DFN proposes to meet the needs identified as outlined below.

This fiscal year, DFN Advisory funding will coordinate five community directed allocations, two man-
agers’ workshops, one governance workshop (for twenty five participants), the development of manuals
addressing five topics for First Nations support, and on site support services.

Interest was expressed in gaining licenses for AIS Membership database software which has been imple-
mented at the regional level. Dehcho First Nations has included the required funds in a funding request
through Gathering Strength and IF funds are available will coordinate the purchase of the software li-
censes for member First Nations.

INAC Band Advisory Service Program Overview

INAC has designed the Band Advisory Service program that is meant to assist First Nations in specific
areas. Under the Advisory Service Funding, three areas of responsibility are defined as follows:

Band government includes administration functions; governing structures, strategic planning and prob-
lem solving; Section 74 of the Indian Act and Band Custom Elections and referenda, election codes,
conflict of interest codes and codes of conduct; management training, orientation and development pro-
grams for elected members and managers; and interpreting the Indian Act for members and membership
registration.

Financial management includes assisting, advising and training band staff and elected officials in a
broad range of financial services areas such as planning, reporting and system development; capital fi-
nancing and liaison with financial institutions; formulating, drafting and implementing financial man-
agement policies procedures and by-laws; establishing budgets and financial management policies; debt
consolidation, remedial management and repayment plans; and personnel recruitment and selection.

1The Band Advisory Service policy limits access to these funds to Bands over 2,000 in membership which must
be the basis for transferring these funds to Territorial Tribal Councils.

2North of Sixty, First Nations receive three of the five advisory service programs; community planning and tech-
nical services funding has been made available to MACA — GNWT. Specific program access may be different
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Economic development includes formulating, drafting, planning and implementing
economic strategies; business plan and funding proposal preparation; setting up
and operating economic development corporations and joint ventures;

networking activities; and activities that support on-reserve economic
development.

Community Directed Advisory Funds

INAC now requires that the receiving agency for Advisory Funding hold the funds and work with the
member First Nations for advisory service delivery. The larger First Nations of the Dehcho First Na-
tions have used funding to assist to meeting the costs of working with their auditors, accountants and
financial support, as well as off setting capacity development and training costs for Chief, Councilor/s
and key staff members that are involved in the day to day administration and governance of the First
Nation.

This fiscal year, community directed advisory funds have been allocated to:

Liidlii Kue First Nation $80,000.00
Deh Gah Got’ie Dene Council $80,000.00
Katlodeeche First Nation $10,000.00
Pehdzeh Ki First Nation $10,000.00
Jean Marie River First Nation $4,000.00

Implementation

The DFN Administration, working in conjunction with each of the First Nations who have been allo-
cated community directed advisory funds, will develop a specific work plan in order to clarify the
unique needs and requirements. Once a community work plan has been established DFN administration
will assume responsibility for affording the specific costs identified in the work plan. Communities will
bear the responsibility of coordinating the work and ensuring completion in a timely fashion, in order for
DFN to remain accountable for the funding. Upon completion of the need/task, the First Nation will
direct Dehcho First Nation to make payment on their behalf to the agreed amount allocated.

Funds cannot be transferred to individual First Nations but must be retained at the tribal level.

It was determined that the First Nations not receiving community directed allocations would receive a
benefit of greater value than received in previous years. Attendance at two band manager’s workshops,
one involving training, a Governance work shop delivered by The Banff Centre, and access to onsite
advisory support in crucial areas of governance and management.

3Cleary, INAC correspondence.
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Governance Manuals

The September Band Managers’ Workshop indicated the need for basic manuals to assist First Na-
tions administrators in a number of specific areas.

Orientation

Roles and Responsibilities of First Nations
Effective Financial Management

Good Governance

Manuals are being prepared and drafts will be available for review by the Managers during the February
session for comment.

Dispute Resolution Training

Part of the Advisory Work Plan is a Managers’ Work Shop scheduled for February 2008.  This work-
shop may include a One day Dispute Resolution training.

On Site Community Support Services

Dehcho First Nations will meet member First Nations ongoing need for on site support in specific areas
that are related to Advisory Service funding. These support services are intended to support Band Man-
agers/Executive Directors with needs that fall within the advisory service program. These may include;

e Election codes

Policy Review

Quiarterly statements
Personnel advisory services

AIS Membership Database development
Reporting requirements

A First Nation in need of the Community Support Service would contact the DFN Executive Director or
Finance Manager with a request. Onsite visits and support will be made available to the greatest degree
possible. Due to limited funding First Nation’s not receiving Community Directed Allocations will re-
ceive first priority for Support Services.

Advisory Service Work Plan Budget

2008 — 2009
Community Directed Allocations 184,000.00
Community Support Services 18,000.00
Band Manager’s Meetings 15,000.00
Total 227,000.00
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Executive Committee Motions and Directions
June 2008 to June 2009

June 13-14 , 2008 - Fort Providence, NT

Motion #01 EXEC June 13, 2008

Move to accept the agenda as amended.
Moved: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large
Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief

Carried

Motion
#01

Motion #02 EXEC June 13, 2008

Move to accept year to date June 12, 2008 Financial Statements.
Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large

Seconded: Keyna Norwegian, Chief

Carried

Motion
#02

Motion #03 EXEC June 13, 2008

Move to confirm the Executive Director Poll of the Executive Committee members
regarding authorization to proceed with Robert Stewart Audit Services for fiscal year
2007/2008.

Moved: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large

Seconded: Keyna Norwegian, Chief

Carried

Motion
#03

Motion #04 EXEC June 13, 2008

Under duress, the Executive Committee recommends that we [DFN} be compliant
with DIAND directive of limiting cash grants to $200/day available only to non
salaried Chiefs and Presidents.

Moved: Keyna Norwegian, Chief

Seconded: Violet Cli, Elder

Carried

Motion
#04

Motion #05 EXEC June 13, 2008

Move that the DFN staff automatically adjust the duty travel rates for incidentals,
meals and private accommodations to reflect current treasury board rates as they
change.

Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large

Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief

Carried

Motion
#05

Motion #06 EXEC June 13, 2008
Move to accept the Youth Council Proposal for submission to various funding
Motion |agencies.
#06 Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Seconded: Violet Cli, Elder
Carried
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June 13-14 , 2008 - Fort Providence, NT

Motion #07 EXEC June 13, 2008
Move to submit MGPIF Phase Ill proposal for submission to the PRO — Industry
Motion |Canada.
#07 Moved: Berna Landry, Chief
Seconded: Keyna Norwegian, Chief
Carried

Motion #08 EXEC June 14, 2008

The Executive Committee has reviewed the Financial Statements with the auditor,
and have addressed the Financial Statement concerns and recommends approval
of the 07/08 draft Financial Statements to the 2008 Annual Assembly.

Moved: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large

Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief

Carried

Motion
#08

Motion #09 EXEC June 14, 2008
To recruit a Finance Clerk to assist the Finance Manager in day-to-day operations
Motion |and functions of Dehcho First Nations.
#09 Moved: Berna Landry, Chief
Seconded: Violet Cli, Elder
Carried

Motion #10 EXEC June 14, 2008
To roll over outstanding payables due to members into deferred revenue one year
Motion |after fiscal year end, if non compliant.
#10 Moved: Berna Landry, Chief
Seconded: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large
Carried

Motion #11 EXEC June 14, 2008
Outstanding payable reported on Financial Statements 2007/2008 in excess of one
year will be given six months to comply before funds are rolled over into deferred

Mg;‘fn revenue for use as initially intended, effective June 14, 2008.
Moved: Keyna Norwegian, Chief
Seconded: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Carried
Motion #12 EXEC June 14, 2008
To identify all accumulated expenditures to June 30, 2008 for Settlement
. Agreement Trust Fund for reimbursement of Trust development costs to Dehcho
Motion h .
412 First Nations. _
Moved: Berna Landry, Chief
Seconded: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large
Carried
Dehcho First Nations @ www.dehcho.org
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June 13-14 , 2008 - Fort Providence, NT

Motion #13 EXEC June 14, 2008

As per the guidelines, Executive Committee has thoroughly reviewed the
prospective candidates for appointment to the Investment Management Board,
Executive Committee recommends to the Annual Assembly the appointment of

Motion Darlene Sibbeston to the Investment Management Board for a term of three years.
#13 :
Moved: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large
Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief
1 abstention — Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Carried
Motion #14 EXEC June 14, 2008
Motion Moved to go in camera.
#14 Moved: Richard Lafferty, I\_/Iember_ at Large
Seconded: Keyna Norwegian, Chief
Carried
Motion #15 EXEC June 14, 2008
Motion Moved to come out of camera.
#15 Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large

Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief
Carried

October 6, 2008 - Fort Providence, NT

Motion #01 EXEC October 6, 2008
Move to accept the agenda as amended.

Mggfn Moved: Joanne Deneron, Mer_nber at Large
Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief
Carried
Direction Revie_w the Organizationa! Review of the IMB and DCEC. Suggest to Leadership to
401 appoint a By-Laws Committee. Have quarterly audits of the Trust posted on the
website.
Motion #02 EXEC October 6, 2008
Move to approve the February 22, 2008, May 8 & 9, 2008, and June 13 & 14, 2008
Motion [Executive Committee meeting minutes as amended.
#02 Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief
Carried
Direction |Establish a compassionate fund for donations. Resolve issue of cash grants with
#02 Leadership.

www.dehcho.org

@ Dehcho First Nations
PR Annual Report 2008-2009




October 6, 2008 - Fort Providence, NT

Motion #03 EXEC October 6, 2008

Move to not approve the Financial Statements as presented.
Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large

Seconded: Margaret Leishman, Elder

Carried

Motion
#03

The Executive Director reviews the concerns with the financial statements with
Direction [Robert. Changes to the statements will be made accurate and brought to next

#03 meeting. Inquire about a course or training to understand financial statements for
the Executive Committee members.

Motion #04 EXEC October 6, 2008

Be it resolved that, the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (CIBC) requires
authorization from Dehcho First Nation Executive Committee on behalf of the
Dehcho Leadership to obtain an ongoing Credit line and Borrowing accessibility as
required per fiscal year for an Operating Line in the amount of One Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) Credit Limit as described as a revolving demand
credit, for general business purposes, having the following parts: (1) Canadian
dollar loans and overdrafts. The Interest Rate is as follows: Prime rate plus 1% per
year,;

Therefore, be it resolved that, Dehcho First Nations Executive Committee approves
the request given by CIBC to access credit in the total amount of One Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for loans and overdraft protection purposes.
Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large

Seconded: Violet Cli, Elder

Carried

Motion
#04

Motion #05 EXEC October 6, 2008

Be it resolved that, the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (CIBC) requires
authorization from Dehcho First Nation Executive Committee on behalf of the
Dehcho Leadership to obtain an ongoing Credit line and Borrowing accessibility as
required per fiscal year for a Corporate Visa in the amount of Fifty Thousand Dollars
Motion |($50,000.00) Credit Limit as described as standard VISA documentation.

#05 Therefore, be it resolved that, Dehcho First Nations Executive Committee approves
the request given by CIBC to access credit in the total amount of Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($50,000.00) for loans and overdraft protection purposes.

Moved: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large
Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief
Carried
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October 6, 2008 - Fort Providence, NT

Motion
#06

Motion #06 EXEC October 6, 2008

Be it resolved that, the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (CIBC) requires
authorization from Dehcho First Nations Executive Committee on behalf of the
Dehcho Leadership to cancel current VISA Credit Card for former Grand Chief Herb
Norwegian and reissue new VISA Credit Card to current Grand Chief Gerald
Antoine effective immediately;

Furthermore be it resolved that, the Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (CIBC)
requires authorization from Dehcho First Nations Executive Committee on behalf of
the Dehcho Leadership to cancel current VISA Credit Card for former Executive
Director Roy Inglagasuk and reissue new VISA Credit Card to current Executive
Director Ria Letcher effective immediately.

Therefore be it resolved that, Dehcho First Nations Executive Committee approves
the request given by CIBC to cancel previous VISA Credit Cards and reissue new
VISA Credit Cards as requested above.

Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large

Seconded: Margaret Leishman, Elder

Carried

Direction
#04

Establish an Advisory Plan not only for this year but for the next fiscal year as well.
Inquire about the credit line and Visa’'s from CIBC.

Direction
#05

Follow-up on the Gordon Foundation proposal that was submitted.

Motion
#07

Motion #07 EXEC October 6, 2008

Move to hire Barb Moreau-Betsaka as a term position of Information Officer until
March 31, 20009.

Moved: Berna Landry, Chief

Seconded: Margaret Leishman, Elder

Carried

Direction
#06

Send condolences to Hugh McCullum on behalf of the Executive Committee and
DFN Staff.

Direction
#07

Provide the minutes of the meeting with the Premier on a memory stick for the Ex-
ecutive Committee members. The youth that attend the meetings on behalf of DFN
are to write reports. Executive Committee Protocol be reviewed and updated. Fi-
nancials be updated on a monthly basis. Grievances or appeals are dealt with by a
Committee appointed by Leadership. Grand Chief's travel is approved by Leader-
ship. Grand Chief gets direction from Leadership on a monthly basis.

Recom.
#01

Recommendation #01 EXEC October 6, 2008
The Executive Committee recommend to Leadership to establish a By-Law Commit-
tee to review the By-Laws.

Direction
#08

Inquire about a generic version of a Zero Tolerance Policy from the GNWT.
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October 6, 2008 - Fort Providence, NT
Motion #08 EXEC October 6, 2008
Move to approve the results of the two Executive Committee polls regarding the
Aboriginal Sports Circle request for travel assistance and administrative support in
Motion the_amount of $11,600.00 to the Dehcho participation in the North American '
#08 Indigenous Games, and Hugh Mc_CuIIum’s contract at a rate of $400/day starting
July 1, 2008 to October 10, 2008 in a total of $14,000.00.
Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief
Carried
Direction |Establish standards for financial reporting, Zero Tolerance Policy, Conflicts of
#09  (Interest Policy, Grand Chief Elections Protocol, and a Donations Policy.
Direction |DFN Staff consolidate all the information on the Grand Chief Election process for
#10  |the Elections Committee.
Motion #09 EXEC October 6, 2008
Motion Moved to go in camera. _
#09 Moved: Berng Landry, Chief
Seconded: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Carried
Motion #10 EXEC October 6, 2008
Motion Moved to come out of camera.
Moved: Berna Landry, Chief
#10 ,
Second:
Carried
Motion #11 EXEC October 6, 2008
Motion Moved to approve the employee Wanda Norwegian hired as Custodian.
#11 Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Second: Berna Landry, Chief
Carried
Advertise the AAROM Coordinator and Resource Management Coordinator
Direction |positions again. Executive Director hire a casual if necessary in either position until
#11 a permanent candidate is hired. Alison de Pelham’s contract be extended until
March 31, 2009.
. Motion #12 EXEC October 6, 2008
Motion : .
#12 Move to adjourn the meetlng.
Moved: Berna Landry, Chief
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January 26-27, 2009 - Fort Simpson, NT

Motion #01 EXEC January 26, 2009

Move to accept the agenda as amended.
Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Seconded: Violet Cli, Elder

Carried

Motion
#01

Motion #02 EXEC January 26, 2009

Move to approve the requested leave of the Executive Director from March 25 to

Motion |[April 9, 2009. Sara McLeod will act in the absence of the Executive Director.
#02 Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large

Seconded: Margaret Leishman, Elder

Carried

Motion #03 EXEC January 26, 2009

Move to extend the scholarship submission deadline to July 31 annually with the

Motion [|allocations being recommended and awarded at the Fall Leadership annually.
#03 Moved: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large

Seconded: Margaret Leishman, Elder

Carried

Motion #04 EXEC January 26, 2009
Move to accept George Lowes recommendation for a short term contract for
Motion |[AAROM commencing immediately.
#04 Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Seconded: Keyna Norwegian, Chief
Carried
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January 26-27, 2009 - Fort Simpson, NT

Motion #05 EXEC January 27, 2009

Whereas, the Dehcho First Nations Executive has gathered for an Executive

Committee Meeting in Fort Simpson on January 26 & 27, 2009; and

Whereas, the Dehcho First Nations Executive Committee has discussed and

reviewed the Class Contribution Mackenzie Gas Project Advancement Program

Agreement for planning work associated with the Mackenzie Gas Project Impact

Fund; and

Whereas, the Dehcho First Nations understand that the Mackenzie Gas Project

Impact Fund is and Aboriginal fund for DFN member communities; and

Whereas, the interest of the non-aboriginal populations

Whereas, DFN is currently seeking clarification from the Minister responsible for the

Mackenzie Gas Project Impact Fund as it pertains to the Dehcho Regional

Investment Plan, specifically with regard to the inclusion of Hay River and Enter-

Motion |prise in addition to DFN member communities in the Dehcho Regional Investment
#05 Plan; and

Whereas, two phases of the Dehcho Regional Investment Plan involving DFN

member communities, are complete and additional planning activities must be

completed to be eligible for funding through the Mackenzie Gas Project Impact

Fund, and

Whereas, the DFN Leadership is prepared to move forward on required planning

activities to complete the Dehcho Regional Investment Plan.

Therefore be it resolved that, the Leadership of the Dehcho First Nations is

prepared to sign the class contribution Mackenzie Gas Project Advancement

Program Agreement to administer and receive up to $350,000 from Environment

Canada to complete the Dehcho Regional Investment Plan.

Moved: Keyna Norwegian, Chief

Seconded: Violet Cli, Elder

Carried

Motion #06 EXEC January 27, 2009
Move to accept to the October 6, 2008 Executive Committee meeting minutes as
Motion [amended.
#06 Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Seconded: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large
Carried

Motion #07 EXEC January 27, 2009

Move to accept to the Financial Statements to January 20, 2009 as presented.
Moved: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large

Seconded: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large

Carried

Motion
#07

Recommendation #01 EXEC January 27, 2009

Recom. [The Executive Committee recommends to Leadership to consider transferring the
#01 responsibility of the Resource Royalties Committee to the Investment Management

Board.
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January 26-27, 2009 - Fort Simpson, NT

Motion #08 EXEC January 27, 2009
Move to go in camera.

M;(t)lgn Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief
Carried
Motion #09 EXEC January 27, 2009
Motion Move to come out of camera.
#09 Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief
Carried
Recom Recommendation #02 EXEC January 27, 2009
402 " |The Executive Committee recommends Clarence Villeneuve to the NWT Tourism
Board.
Recom Recommendation #03 EXEC January 27, 2009
403 " |The Executive Committee recommends Joe Acorn to the NWT Water Strategy

Committee.

Motion #10 EXEC January 27, 2009

Move to amend the Administrative and Personnel Policy regarding personal use of

the Dehcho First Nations vehicle where the authorized personnel are responsible

Motion (for the gasoline and insurance deductibles resulting from personal use of Dehcho
#10 First Nations vehicles.

Moved: Margaret Leishman, Elder

Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief

Carried

Motion #11 EXEC January 27, 2009

Move to approve that as per the Administrative Policy that Gerald Antoine is
responsible for the insurance deductible resulting from insurance claim in December
2008.

Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large

Seconded: Violet Cli, Elder

Carried

Motion
#11

Motion #12 EXEC January 27, 2009

Move to amend the Administrative Policy and Personnel Policy regarding overtime

for Managers. Managers would be paid straight time for pre-authorized overtime

Motion [and emergency overtime. Respective Managers may choose to have it paid out in
#12 cash on the next pay period only; otherwise it will have to be taken in lieu.

Moved: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large

Seconded: Keyna Norwegian, Chief

Carried
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January 26-27, 2009 - Fort Simpson, NT

Motion
#13

Motion #13 EXEC January 27, 2009

Move to approve the Grand Chief's overtime be restricted to a maximum 20 hours
per month and has to be pre-authorized by one of the two chiefs on the Executive
Committee or in the case of an emergency. This time is to be paid in straight time
and can only be taken in lieu.

Moved: Berna Landry, Chief

Seconded: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large

Carried

May 7, 2009 - Teleconference

Motion
#01

Motion #01 EXEC May 7, 2009

Move to approve the agenda as amended.

Moved: Berna Landry, Chief

Seconded: Margaret Leishman, Member at Large
Carried

Motion
#02

Motion #02 EXEC May 7, 2009

Move to approve the previous meeting minutes of January 26 and 27, 2009 as
amended.

Moved: Keyna Norwegian, Chief

Seconded: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large

Carried

Motion
#03

Motion #03 EXEC May 7, 2009

Move to approve the continued services of Robert Stewart as the Auditor for the fis-
cal year of 2008 and 2009.

Moved: Berna Landry, Chief

Seconded: Margaret Leishman, Elder

Carried

Motion
#04

Motion #04 EXEC May 7, 2009

Move to authorize the Office/Travel Manager, Sara McLeod, and Finance Manager,
Dora Tsetso, to apply for a Diner’'s Club Account to a maximum of $10,000 to be
used specifically for travel and accommodation.

Moved: Joanne Deneron, Member at Large

Seconded: Margaret Leishman, Elder

Carried
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June 8, 2009 - Fort Simpson, NT
Motion #01 EXEC June 8, 2009
: Move to approve the agenda as amended.
Motion ] )

401 Moved: Berna Landry, Chief
Seconded: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Carried
Motion #02 EXEC June 8, 2009

: Move to approve the previous meeting minutes of May 7, 2009 as presented.
Motion ] .

#02 Moved: Berna Landry, Chief
Seconded: Margaret Leishman, Elder
Carried
Put an advertisement out to request any DFN AHRDA members that are interested

. . |to sit on the Dehcho First Nations Futures Society Board. If the three remaining
Direction -

#01 members were not chose_n by the Assembly, the orlglnal_members composed of
LKFN, DGG, and DEC will meet before July 1, 2009 to sign the proposal and the
remaining members can be added when the names are chosen.

Dlrggtzlon The Acting Executive Director to draft a proposal for the ASTSIF dollars.
Direction |Send memo to the communities to ask the Chiefs if they would like to honor anyone

#03 at the Annual Assembly.

Direction [The Acting Executive Director will arrange for gifts to give to the honored members

#04  |at the Annual Assembly.

Direction [The Acting Grand Chief to acknowledge the newborns and welcomes them in the

#05 opening remarks at the Annual Assembly.

Motion #03 EXEC June 8, 2009
Move to approve an interim audit at 6 months, 9 months and at year end at March
Motion |[31.

#03 Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Seconded: Margaret Leishman, Elder
Carried
Motion #04 EXEC June 8, 2009
Move to recommend to the Assembly that they accept the 2008/09 Audited Finan-

Motion |cial Statements as presented.

#04 Moved: Berna Landry, Chief
Seconded: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large
Carried

Direction The Acting Executive Director writes a proposal to access the Intergovernmental
Forum funding to consult with the DFN membership to inform them of what
#06 .
Devolution is and to ask for feedback.
Direction [The Acting Executive Director may grant Barb Moreau-Betsaka her remuneration if
#07 it is reasonable.
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June 8, 2009 - Fort Simpson, NT

A letter to be written to Katlodeeche First Nation explaining that Dehcho First
Nations does not operate on verbal commitments and cannot support their request
at this time. Please seek alternative funding.

Direction
#08

Direction |The Acting Executive Director will direct Lois Little of Lutra Associates, to continue
#09  |the work on drafting the Regional Investment Plan proposal.

Motion #05 EXEC June 8, 2009

Move to approve that the Dehcho First Nations cash grant be amended that all
Dehcho First Nations cash grants be a standardized $300 per day, including
teleconferences and travel. Travel time would be compensated at straight time.
Moved: Richard Lafferty, Member at Large

Seconded: Berna Landry, Chief

Carried

Motion
#05

Direction |The Acting Executive Director will amend the Advisory Services in the Operational
#10 Plan for the Assembly Report.

Direction . - .

#11 Revaluate all job descriptions to get the correct titles and pay scales.
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Dehcho Process Report
By Georges Erasmus, Chief Negotiator

Background

The Dehcho Process began in 1999 with the intention of negotiating an agreement which would recog-
nize a Dehcho public government which would have ownership and jurisdiction over all lands and re-
sources in the Dehcho Territory. In 2001 a Framework Agreement and Interim Measures Agreement
were signed, and in 2003 the DFN and Canada agreed to package of interim land withdrawals to protect
sensitive lands during the negotiations process, as well as an agreement to jointly manage and Nahanni
National Park Reserve and to expand the boundaries of the Park to protect the Nahanni watershed. An
Interim Resource Development Agreement (IRDA) was also signed in 2003.

Executive Summary

AIP negotiations made little progress between 2003 and 2008 because DFN negotiators had no mandate
to negotiate land selection, while Canada and the GNWT refused to negotiate any agreement which is
not based on land selection and “comparable” to other Comprehensive Land Claims settlements in the
NWT. The 2008 Annual Assembly passed a resolution which gave DFN negotiators a mandate to nego-
tiate an AiP based on land selection, but only after the Land Use Plan is completed and Canada has
agreed to implement the Plan. The resolution also said that AiP negotiations should proceed in two
phases: first, governance negotiations; second, negotiations on lands, resources and land selection.
Canada and the GNWT refused to negotiate on the basis of the 2008 Assembly resolution and AiP nego-
tiations remained at a standstill.

At the February, 2009 Leadership meeting DFN leaders passed a resolution which significantly modified
the 2008 Assembly resolution. The Leadership resolution allows for negotiations on an AiP based on
land selection without requiring that Canada first approve the draft Land Use Plan. The Leadership reso-
lution allows AiP negotiations to take place concurrently with negotiations to modify the draft land use
plan, while stating that the highest priority for negotiations will remain the completion, approval and
implementation of the Interim Land Use Plan.

On June 9 the federal Minister of the Environment, Jim Prentice, introduced legislation to expand the
boundaries of the Nahanni National Park Reserve to six times its’ current size. The new Park Reserve
will cover and protect 91% of the Dehcho portion of the South Nahanni watershed. This was a major
achievement capping ten years of work by DFN and Parks Canada staff.

AiP Negotiations

After completion of the agreement on interim land withdrawals and the signing of the IRDA in 2003, the
DFN and Canada began negotiations towards a non-binding AiP on land ownership, resource manage-
ment and governance. DFN negotiators insisted on negotiating an AiP based on shared stewardship of
the entire Dehcho Territory, as mandated by the Dehcho Proposal, not land selection. Initially Canada
agreed to consider the shared stewardship model, but in 2005 federal negotiators stated clearly that they
had instructions only to negotiate an agreement based on land selection under the Comprehensive
Claims policy.
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Since 2005, Canada has consistently said that it will only negotiate a Comprehensive Land Claim agree-
ment with the Dehcho which is “comparable” to other agreements in the NWT. Under Canada’s
“comparable” formula, the DFN could end up owning between 46,000 and 60,000 square kilometres of
the Dehcho Territory, depending upon how the DFN interests are compared to other settlement areas.
DFN would also be able to nominally participate in management of lands throughout the rest of the
Dehcho territory through nominations to the Mackenzie Valley Land and Water Board and the
Mackenzie Valley Environmental Impact Review Board. As well, the traditional harvesting rights of
DFN members would be preserved on all Crown lands throughout the Dehcho territory.

Based on their comparisons between the Dehcho and the Tlicho, Canada’s negotiators say their current
mandate does not allow them to agree to a land quantum of more than 39,000 sq km, which would mean
that Canada would own the remaining 176,000 sq km. Any increase to that mandate will require the
approval of Cabinet.

The November 2006 Special Assembly gave DFN negotiators a mandate to “explore” a land selection
agreement. This limited mandate was reaffirmed at the 2007 Annual Assembly, which also directed that
the DFN continue to stress the importance of compliance with existing agreements with Canada, espe-
cially agreements in which Canada promised to implement the completed Land Use Plan (LUP).

In December 2007, Canada indicated that negotiations couldn’t go much further unless the Dehcho ne-
gotiating team obtained a clear mandate to negotiate a land claim agreement based on the federal Com-
prehensive Claims policy. Canada said that having a mandate to “explore” a land selection agreement
wasn’t sufficient to move further ahead on the main issues.

2008 Assembly Resolution

The 2008 Annual Assembly passed a resolution which gave DFN negotiators a mandate to negotiate an
AIP based on land selection, but only after the Land Use Plan is completed and Canada has agreed to
implement the Plan. The resolution also said that AiP negotiations should proceed in two phases: first,
governance negotiations; second, negotiations on lands, resources and land selection.

Canada and the GNWT refuse to negotiate on the terms set out in the 2008 Assembly resolution. They
continue to insist that they will only consider approving and implementing a land use plan after an AiP
based on land selection is ratified by the DFN.

The delegates at the strategy workshop held February 3-5, 2009 in Ft. Simpson recommended that the
2008 Assembly resolution be modified so that it will not preclude AiP negotiations on self-government
and lands and resources being conducted concurrently with work on the timely completion and imple-
mentation of the Land Use Plan. This would be a significant modification to the 2008 Assembly resolu-
tion which negotiators cannot undertake without direction from the Leadership.

At the February, 2009 Leadership meeting DFN leaders passed a resolution which reaffirms that the
highest priority for negotiations will remain the completion, approval and implementation of the Interim
Land Use Plan, but allowing for negotiations on AiP issues to take place concurrently. Canada wel-
comed the new DFN approach and AiP negotiations resumed.
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The main table has recently established a working group called the Legal Technical Committee (LTC).
The LTC is primarily comprised of the parties’ lawyers and has a mandate to draft AiP chapters for dis-
cussion and negotiation at the main table. The LTC will not negotiate — it will simply produce draft AiP
chapters which identify the areas where the parties disagree so that the main table can focus discussions
on those areas. The DFN is represented on the LTC by legal counsel Chris Reid, and Chris is assisted
by Laura Pitkanen. Laura is not a lawyer but she has experience in researching and drafting land claim
and governance agreements and has assisted Georges and Chris over the past few years.

Since 2007 DFN negotiators have drafted and addressed AiP chapters on:

e Dehcho Resource Management Authority
Eligibility and Enrolment

Ratification

Implementation of final agreement
Expropriation of Dehcho Lands

Access to Dehcho Lands

Treaty Rights

Housing, Education and Health
Harvesters’ Compensation

As well main table discussions have also included brief discussions on taxation, culture and heritage,
Meétis issues and capacity building.

The DFN members of the LTC will continue working over the summer to draft AiP chapters consistent
with our instructions from the Leadership and Assemblies.

DCRMA

On April 21, 2009 the Grand Chief met with Minister of INAC, Chuck Strahl. The GC was accompa-
nied by Chief Negotiator Georges Erasmus. The discussions focused on the DFN proposal for a final
agreement to recognize and implement a Dehcho Resource Management Authority (DCRMA) which
would operate independently of the MVRMA and consolidate land use planning, permitting and environ-
mental assessments in a single body.

The meeting was successful. Mr. Strahl agreed to give his negotiators instructions to seriously explore
the DFN proposal for consolidated system of resource management based on the DCRMA model. How-
ever, federal officials have recently advised us that Canada is not prepared to begin any negotiations on
a DCRMA until they complete an internal review of Neil McCrank’s 2008 report on the NWT regula-
tory system. McCrank was critical of the MVRMA and the complex system of multiple boards manag-
ing natural resources in the NWT. The DFN have expressed the same concerns, however the DFN have
recommended establishing a stand-alone DCRMA to manage natural resources in the Dehcho while
McCrank instead recommended consolidating resource management in an NWT-wide regime.

The chief negotiators have agreed to establish a working group to begin discussions on how natural re-
sources in the Dehcho after a final agreement.

Nahanni Park Expansion

Several DFN assembly resolutions and leadership resolutions have called for the protection of the South
Nahanni watershed through the expansion of Nahanni National Park Reserve.
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In 2003 the DFN and Canada signed an Interim Park Management Arrangement, which placed Nahanni
National Park Reserve under the joint control of Canada and the DFN under the Naha Deh Consensus
Team. Canada and the DFN also signed an MoU on Park Expansion in which both parties agreed to
work cooperatively to protect the South Nahanni watershed by expanding the boundaries of the Park.

To implement the MoU Canada and the DFN formed a Nahanni Expansion Working Group (NEWG)
which reports to the CEO of Parks Canada and to the DFN Grand Chief. Jonas Antoine was the repre-
sentative for DFN on the NEWG. He was assisted by Laura Pitkanen who continues to work hard on
this file.

The NEWG submitted its final recommendation to the CEO and to the Grand Chief in December 2007.
The NEWG recommended that the Park boundaries be expanded to protect approximately 97% of the
watershed from mining and other industrial activities, while leaving existing third party interests, includ-
ing the Prairie Creek mine, intact. The expanded Park Reserve would be jointly managed by the Con-
sensus Team.

The recommendation went to the Minister of the Environment for a final round of consultations with the
DFN, industry groups, the GNWT and INAC. These consultations produced a consensus that the Minis-
ter should recommend to the federal Cabinet that the NNPR boundaries be expanded to cover approxi-
mately 91% of the watershed. The 9% of the watershed which will not be within the new Park Reserve
boundaries will remain protected by the IMA. The lands outside the new Park Reserve boundaries are
known to have high mineral potential and could also be owned by the DFN after a final agreement and
land selection.

On June 9, the Minister introduced legislation to expand the boundaries of the NNPR. It is expected that
all parties will support the legislation and the expansion will soon be completed.

Land Use Plan

The tri-partite LUPC was established by the IMA in 2001 and submitted a complete Land Use Plan in
spring, 2006. The Plan was approved by the DFN at the 2006 Assembly, but Canada then refused to
approve the Plan, despite their promise in the Settlement Agreement signed in 2005 to approve the Plan
as soon as possible after its completion.

In April, 2007 the DFN and Canada agreed to a new work plan for the LUPC to revise the Plan approved
by DFN in 2006. Canada and the GNWT changed their appointees on the Committee and Mike Nadli
replaced Herb Norwegian as Chair of the Committee. The DFN are still represented on the Committee
by Petr Cizek and Tim Lennie. The LUPC is now working on significant changes to the Plan approved
by the DFN in 2006.

At this point there is still no assurance that the Interim Land Use Plan will be implemented by Canada
after it is completed. In fact, Canada continues to say that they will not implement the Plan until the
DFN approve an AiP based on land selection.

The GNWT position is even more extreme, and continues to change dramatically from month to month.
Recently, after seven years of saying nothing on this issue, the GNWT informed the DFN that they
would not approve any land use plan unless the DFN agree that at least 30% of any “Dehcho settlement
lands” selected through the Dehcho Process are selected from areas zoned as Conservation Zones in the
land use plan. The GNWT also wants significant amendments to the IMA as a condition of approving
the Plan.
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The Planning Committee continues to work on very significant revisions to the Interim Land Use Plan.
Most of the revisions have been proposed by Canada and the GNWT to permit industrial activity in con-
servation zones, change “special management zones” into “special development zones” which permit
industrial activity, and generally make the Dehcho more open to development than it would be under the
Plan approved in 2006.

Issues which cannot be resolved by the Committee will be brought to the Main Table for negotiation.

Interim Resource Development Agreement (IRDA)

The IMA provides that no new petroleum exploration licenses will be issued by INAC in the Dehcho
without the support of affected DFN communities.

The 2003 Interim Resource Development Agreement (IRDA) provides that the DFN will receive an an-
nual share of the resource royalties collected by Canada in the NWT. In return, the DFN agreed to use
best efforts to reach agreement with Canada on terms and conditions for new petroleum exploration li-
cences. In discussions in 2003 and 2004 no progress was made because Canada refused to consider any
of the terms and conditions proposed by the DFN.

In the Settlement Agreement signed in 2005 to end the DFN legal challenge to the MVRMA and the
process for reviewing and approving the MGP, it was agreed that consultations on terms and conditions
for new petroleum exploration would address: exploration parcel sizes, air and water emission standards,
restrictions on seismic cut lines and cash bonus bidding. These discussions with Canada have not pro-
gressed.

On February 16, 2009, the Grand Chief received a letter from INAC which threatens to terminate the
IRDA, along with the annual royalty payouts to the DFN, if there is no agreement by September 2009 to
allow a new cycle of petroleum exploration.

If agreement cannot be reached with Canada on terms and conditions for new exploration licenses the
DFN may consider moving on their own to initiate a competitive bidding process to determine appropri-
ate terms and conditions for new exploration.

In April the Leadership passed a resolution calling for a renewed effort by both the DFN and Canada to
find agreement on terms and conditions for a new petroleum exploration cycle. Negotiations with INAC
on terms and conditions will be led by a working group consisting of Chiefs Lloyd Chicot and Keyna
Norwegian, Stanley Sanguez and legal counsel, Chris Reid. No meetings have yet been scheduled.
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In July 2008, Canada, the Acho Dene Koe First Nation and the GNWT signed a framework agreement to
enter into comprehensive land claim negotiations outside of the Dehcho Process.

The DFN Chief Negotiator wrote to Canada’s Chief Negotiator on February 23, 2009, outlining the DFN
position on the removal of ADK from agreements negotiated through the Dehcho Process, including the
Framework Agreement, IMA and IRDA. Canada responded on April 21 by indicating that they see no
need to negotiate ADK’s removal from the Dehcho Process and related agreements.

Chief Negotiator Georges Erasmus has advised Canada that the new Grand Chief will be briefed on the

option of writing to the Minister to propose a method for amending the existing agreements quickly and
clearly.

Next Steps
The next main table session will be held September 1-3, 2009 in Trout Lake.

The next Legal Technical Committee (LTC) meetings will be June 19 by teleconference, July 3 in Ot-
tawa and August 11 by teleconference.
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AAROM Report
By Georges Low, AAROM Coordinator

Introduction

The Dehcho First Nations (DFN) is currently implementing a Capacity Building program under the
Aboriginal Aquatic Resource and Oceans Management (AAROM) program via a multi-year funding
agreement with the Department of Fisheries and Oceans. The multi-year agreement was signed in De-
cember, 2007 with a completion date of March 31, 2009.

Two interim reports have been submitted to DFO. One for the period April 1, 2008 to September 30,
2008 by Misty Ireland, the Coordinator during that period and one for the period October 1, 2008 to
February 28, 2009 by George Low who was contracted in late January as the AAROM Coordinator/
Biologist. This report is the final report and covers the fiscal year period April 1, 2008 to March 31,
2009 and provides an overview of the work completed.

DETAILS OF WORK AND ACTIVITIES

PHASE 3: Overview of Strategic and Community Based Planning

Program Administration:

Misty Ireland, the AAROM Program Coordinator hired in late March began work on April 1, 2008. Un-
fortunately for the program, she resigned in August. She worked part time until mid-October to draft the
September 30" interim report. A Technical Advisor/Biologist was hired in June but left her position with
the program at the end of November.

George Low, the current acting Coordinator was contracted in late January, 2009 to complete obliga-
tions under the 2008- 2009 fiscal year funding period. He will be contracted as the DFN AAROM Coor-
dinator/Senior Biologist in the next fiscal year. He will work out of an AAROM office set up in Hay
River, NT. He will travel extensively to the Dehcho communities.

Two Committee meetings and an elder’s workshop have occurred this year and major progress has been
made towards meeting program objectives by year end, including report writing and program planning.
The Dehcho AAROM is preparing to enter a collaborative management agreement with DFO for the
next fiscal year. Included in this proposal will be provisions for organizing training and seasonal com-
munity staffing of small seed projects in the communities.

In order to be successful the Dehcho AAROM program must be community based. These community
projects will eventually be built into a program which through partnering with other government agen-
cies, universities and NGO’s will provide a comprehensive aquatic research and monitoring program.

The Dehcho AAROM program, under DFN, has effective administration in place and has a commitment
by the new AAROM Coordinator/Senior Biologist to provide stable and consistent leadership to bring
this program to a level where it will provide the Dehcho leadership and DFO with a platform for col-
laborative management of the aquatic resources in the Dehcho watershed. There are many challenges
ahead and we must be patient in bringing this program to fruition in the Dehcho area.
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Research File and Program Analysis:

The previous Technical Advisor during her tenure built the beginnings of an extensive e-file of research
papers useful in analyzing previous research and baseline studies. The present Coordinator has added
extensively to information available on aquatic ecosystems and resources in the Dehcho. We will con-
tinue to build our resource centre.

Good progress has been made on analyzing community concerns with the ultimate goal of addressing
them through capacity building and collaborative partnerships. Continued capacity building such as
training and acquiring equipment will be necessary but our goal is to lead into collaborative activity re-
sulting in sub-basin management planning, aquatic ecosystem assessment, fish stock assessment and fish
health and contaminant determination and monitoring.

Meeting of the Dehcho Watershed Ecosystem Advisory Committee - February 2009

A meeting of the Committee was held at the Yamozha Kue Centre on the Katlodeeche First Nation Re-
serve on February 17 & 18, 2009. The Committee was updated by the Coordinator with information on
the AAROM program and how the DFN and the First Nations and Métis organizations are involved in
the program. Members had a number of questions about AAROM and how their organizations might
better participate in the program.

The current staffing situation and the progress | ‘ ~ i
of the AAROM program were discussed. = 2

The Coordinator and the Committee would like
to see the program advanced as far as possible
by the end of the fiscal year so that a
collaborative mgmt. proposal can be submitted
to DFO as soon as possible in the new fiscal
year.

Community issues and concerns were
discussed and categorized into general
projects that will address them in the future.
Efforts will be made to begin building
collaborative management structure in the communities. Community issues and concerns will be ad-
dressed through comprehensive projects and programs rather than on a one by one basis.

Deanna Leonard, DFO Fisheries Management, gave us a preview of some of the topics that were to be
discussed at the DFO AAROM/AFS workshop the following week. She would like to see AAROM and
AFS programs work more cooperatively and for the programs to become community driven. DFO would
like to see communities take on more responsibility for programs that are for their benefit.

We also discussed the Environment Canada, CABIN program which would be a useful tool for commu-
nities to assess the ecological health of their sub-basin streams. Involvement of youth and elders and the
school system should be a part of AAROM programs.
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DF0-AAROM/AES Workshop — February, 2009:

A two day workshop at the Chief Lamalice Centre on the Katlodeeche First Nation Reserve was organ-
ized by DFO, Fisheries Management with representatives from various programs in DFO and good rep-
resentation from most First Nations and Métis Nation organizations from the Dehcho and the Akaitcho
territories. (The Sahtu Renewable Resources Board also provided Glen Guthrie who explained a very
successful collaborative watershed management project on Bosworth Creek, an impacted stream in the
community of Norman Wells.)

A majority of our Dehcho member communities had representatives at the workshop and will have bene-
fited from the exercise.

Deanna Leonard of DFO, Fisheries Management informed the participants on how the AFS and
AAROM program have already increased community capacity and improved communications and the
working relationship between the communities and the Department. Although we are in the early stages
of developing collaborative management programs, interaction has been greatly improved and some ex-
cellent projects have being accomplished. Youth and Elder Science and Culture camps, TK interviews
and video production, research and monitoring projects were some examples.

Our fisheries and aquatic resources projects now need to mature into true collaborative management pro-
grams which involve First Nations taking possession of their programs and becoming fully involved in
managing aquatic resources. There is a need for FN’s to engage in decision making. There is still an
opportunity to build capacity, to form partnerships and develop strategic plans in order to become more
involved in resource management.

The workshop was very useful in developing our understanding of the AAROM and AFS programs and
how we can truly become engaged in collaborative management in the watershed.

Dehcho Watershed and Ecosystem Advisory Committee, Elder’s TK Session — August 2008

A three day workshop was held at the Yamozha Kue Centre on the Katlodeeche Reserve during August
to build on community concerns and record the traditional knowledge advice of the elders present.

The workshop was facilitated by AAROM biologist, Stacy Frame. Simultaneous translation and re-
cordings of the workshop were provided by the Yamozha Kue Centre and have been archived for the
project. Additional work is required to develop a policy on the use of ATK.

Joint Community Visits by AAROM Staff and DFO Biologists:

During the months of June and July, Misty Ireland and Stacy Frame of the AAROM program and Rob
Smith from DFO travelled around the region to visit the various Dehcho communities. The intent of
these visits was to provide information on the AAROM and AFS programs and get feedback from the
community leadership and Band members on issues and concerns.
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Following is a summary of the community visits:

e Jean Marie — June 13 to 15 at the Annual Gen- |
eral Meeting

Fort Simpson — July 7™
Wrigley — July 8"

Nahanni Butte — July 9"
Fort Liard — July 10"
Trout Lake — July 11"

Fort Providence — July 13"
Kakisa — July 14"

Hay River — July 15"

Posters were designed and posted to community bulletin boards to help create awareness of the AAROM
program and provide contact information.

Information generated from these visits as well as from previous meetings and workshops has proved
very useful in developing a compendium of information for each community. This information was ana-
lyzed and categorized in order to shape projects and programs which can address concerns in the water-
shed in an organized and efficient manner.

Coordinator Visit to Communities of Nahanni Butte, Jean Marie River and Wrigley

The coordinator drove to each of these communities in late March to deliver the three 18 foot Lund
boats and introduce himself to the Chief and/or Administrative staff. The brief meetings provided the
opportunity to discuss the official use of the boats and to informally discuss plans for the continuing
AAROM program. These smaller communities were quite happy that they were being equipped and
would be involved in AAROM projects in the future.

Training, Education and Employment:

Although there has been some training through other programs which will benefit the AAROM program
in the Dehcho, a specific training program has yet to be implemented. There is certainly a need for more
Capacity Building in this respect. There has been some initial discussion on training needs which in-
clude the following:

I. Extension education through Aurora College in the NWT provides a certified qualification in
Environmental Monitoring on completion of six-week courses;

I1. Motivational sessions with elders, leaders and researchers will promote best practices and
interpersonal skills;

I11. Marine Emergency Duty (MED 1) Certificate and Small Vessel Operator Proficiency Cer-
tificate (SVOPC) courses required by Transport Canada will be delivered by Aurora College
or other trainers;

IV. Various short courses will be used to certify technicians with, WHIMIS, First Aid and CPR,
Occupational Health and Safety, weather reporting;

V. Computer courses such as Microsoft Excel and Word will be delivered by local trainers or by
Aurora College;
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VI. Laboratory courses hosted by INAC, Taiga Labs in Yellowknife and Environment Canada’s
National Water Research Institute in Saskatoon will help selected community technicians to
gain an understanding of sample processing and analysis and data management; and

VII. On the job training by resource managers and researchers from universities and govt. de-
partments such as DFO and E.C. will educate technicians on scientific protocol specific to
individual research or monitoring projects.

Youth and Elders:

There is a definite requirement for both Elders and Youth to become more involved in the Dehcho
AAROM program. Firstly, the Dehcho has decided that Aboriginal traditional knowledge will share an
important part of this program along with Western Science. The gathering of ATK and the passing of
this knowledge to youth will be a fundamental feature. Youth are the future of the Dehcho. If the
Dehcho AAROM program is to remain functional in the future, then youth need to be brought on board.
The program should encourage and assist youth to pursue post-secondary education. Although discus-
sion with the Committee has been preliminary the following components may become a part of the
Dehcho AAROM program:

e ATK Component
o Elder workshops and youth mentoring
o Elder ATK video/audio interviews

e Youth Component
0 Observers at Committee meetings
o Youth and Elder Science and Culture Camps
o School presentations and events

There is definite need for capacity building in the Youth and Elder component. There is also the need for
establishing protocols for the appropriate use and integration of Aboriginal Traditional Knowledge into
fisheries management initiatives. The communities have developed some very good “on the land” pro-
grams. Hopefully AAROM will be able to partner into these programs and establish an aquatic science
component.

Equipment and infrastructure:

The Dehcho AAROM is about halfway there as far as equipping itself to function in the communities on
partnership projects and initiatives. Boats and safety gear are now available to the program in most com-
munities through past AFS Grants and Contribution agreements. Following is a breakdown of haves and
have-nots;

e Dehcho First Nations
o0 Require a lockable equipment trailer
0 Have a boat and snowmobile for project work

e Katlodeeche — No boat or storage
o Require shallow draft boat for Buffalo Lake
o0 Require Cabin/storage at Buffalo Lake
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e Ka’a’gee Tu — Have 18 foot Lund in Kakisa and Cabin at Tathlina Lake
e Sambaa K’e Trout Lake — Have Harbercraft Boat and Garage
o Deh Gah Gotie Dene Council and Fort Providence Métis — Have an 18 foot Lund and garage
e Jean Marie River — Have an 18 foot Lund
o Require a Garage
e Nahanni Butte — Have an 18 Foot Lund
o0 Require a garage
o Liidlii Kue FN and Fort Simpson Métis — Don’t have a boat
o May require a garage
e Wrigley — Have an 18 foot Lund
o0 Require a garage
o Fort Liard (not a participant at this time)

Liaison with DFO Area Office:

DFO, Fisheries Management staff have been contacted on a regular basis so that both parties are aware
of program plans and accomplishments. We intend to work closely with the Department as we continue
to build our AAROM and AFS programs.

\"ll
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AHRDA Report
By Gloria Buboire, AHRDA Coordinator

Dehcho First Nations (DFN) receives an annual budget of $1,412,314 from Human Resources and Skills
Development Canada (HRSDC) to administer human resources development programs and services for
the Dehcho Region. Based on the 1996 census, DFN allocates 57% ($807,627) of AHRDA funds to 11
Aboriginal community organizations.

Each DFN community signs a service contract which outlines the terms and conditions for delivering
and promoting human resources development programs that are tailored to meet the needs of First Na-
tions, Metis and Inuit peoples in their community. The terms and conditions include: eligible assis-
tance costs; non-eligible assistance costs; GST/HST costs; travel rates; capital assets; disposal of capital
assets; work plans and cash flows; distribution of funds; DFN community AHRDA files; financial re-
porting; statistical reporting; slippage; carry over; compliance; information and promotions; availability
of funds; audit requirements on $350,000 or more; sub-agreement holders further distributing funds;
amendment, extension or termination; repayments; confidentiality and use; authority and disclosure.

DFN communities are accountable for all AHRDA funds expended on employment assistance services

and client programming. Accountability measures include submitting required client data, written and
detailed financial reports on a quarterly basis.

PROGRAMMING

Many creative and innovative programs were designed by LTA’s with the community LTA Committee’s
deciding the types of programs to be funded and the clients that will be funded. The communities are
committed to training and educating their clients for employment opportunities and to obtain permanent
employment in the workforce.

Two of the larger communities have dedicated staff to provide employment assistance services, adminis-
ter the programs, coordinate the training needs and meet the accountability factor. The smaller commu-
nities lack the human resource capacity required to meet the accountability factor required in reporting,
as such additional assistance will be provided by means of phone calls, emails, and community visits to
assist with quarterly reporting.

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE FUND (CRF) ($1,069,317 + $1,584 interest = $1,070,901)

The majority of programming is available through the Consolidated Revenue Fund which is broken
down as follows:

CRF Administration Budget ($139,592) — All program funding utilized, no deferred dollars

Two thirds of the administration budget was utilized by staffing of the AHRDA office. One third of the
administration budget was utilized by rent, utilities, financial services/audit fees, equipment/office sup-
plies and advertising.

DFN provides administration and advisory services to the communities by holding regional AHRDA
meetings, developing policies that will continue to meet the many diverse scenarios the communities are
facing when delivering programs for the clients. The AHRDA application and AHRDA policy are re-
viewed and updated on an annual basis. These amendments to the application and policy are based on
best practices, decisions made by the communities as well as recommendations from the Auditor.
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CRF Capacity Building ($22,474) — All program funding utilized, no deferred dollars

The majority of program funding was utilized on the AHRDA regional meeting for site rental, commu-
nity staff travel, accommodations and per diems. A lesser portion of program funding was provided for
education of DFN AHRDA/Finance staff as well as local community staff responsible for the delivery of
the AHRDA program.

CRF Programs ($492,055) — All program funding utilized, no deferred dollars
Funding is distributed to the 11 Aboriginal community organizations on a quarterly basis. The primary
authority and responsibility over education and training rests at the community level.

o Employment Assistance Services (EAS) $251,027 budget as per 2008/2009 work plan
Budgets indentify the maximum allowable for wages, training and administration fees. Wages are
pro-rated based on the percentage of time spent administering the AHRDA program. Communities
are not to exceed the employment assistance services allocated to their community. Two larger
communities employ LTA Coordinators or Career Development Officers to provide employment
assistance services, to administer the programs, coordinate the training needs and meet the account-
ability factor.

Communities utilized $157,449 on CRF EAS to help offset the costs associated with administering
the AHRDA program on a local level. The unexpended $93,578 CRF EAS balance has been reallo-
cated to the CRF Client Program which will directly benefit clients through increased programming
dollars available.

e CRF Client Program $241,028 budget as per 2008/2009 work plan serving 115 clients

Budgets identify the maximum allowable for providing assistance to individuals returning to school,
post-secondary education, tuition cost for courses related to on-the-job training, wage subsidies, job
creation partnerships, skills development and self-employment initiatives. In order to meet training
priorities, communities are encouraged to partner with other agencies to design, develop and deliver
programs for their community as well as cost share with other regional communities. Community
advisory services are provided to all communities through phone calls, emails, regional meetings
and community visits.

Communities utilized $334,606 of client program funding on 260 clients. $241,028 was budgeted in
the work plan with an additional $93,578 reallocated from the CRF EAS program. An increased
number of clients benefited directly from the reallocated CRF EAS funds.

CRF Youth ($50,798) — All program funding utilized, no deferred dollars

Funding is distributed to the 11 AHRDA holders in the second quarter of the year. Each community
utilizes the funding in its own unique way by enabling youth to find or obtain summer employment and
on-the-job experience.

o Employment Assistance Services (EAS) budgets indentify the maximum allowable for administra-
tion fees. Communities are not to exceed the employment assistance services allocated to their com-
munity.

Communities utilized $13,966 on Employment Assistance Services to help offset the costs associ-
ated with administering the AHRDA program on a local level.
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CRF Youth Client Program budgets identify the maximum allowable for providing assistance to youth
returning to school in the fall through the following programs:

e Student Summer Employment Program employs youth to attain work experience and develop
workplace skills;

e Community Service Program assist youth in creating employment while obtaining work ex-
perience on a part-time basis;

e Labour Market Information Program provides funding for youth awareness workshops on
the land where youth are made award of the importance of education, careers in the First Nation
and how the path of wellness will help with their career;

e Internship Program provides work experience through on-the-job training in an administration
office environment

Communities utilized $36,832 on program funding on clients by providing 23 students with summer
employment.

CRF Urban Initiatives ($24,279) — All program funding utilized, no deferred dollars

Funding is proposal driven. Aboriginal community organizations or Aboriginal people who have been
denied funding from the community in which they reside due to lack of funding are requested to submit
a proposal complete with budget breakdown. All proposals must be accompanied by DFN AHRDA ap-
plication and funding denial letter from the community in which you reside.

Dehcho First Nations coordinated the utilization of $24,249 by providing: 2 clients with Trades Access
funding for tuition, travel, accommodation and food; 1 client with Millwright 3 Year funding for tui-
tion, books, supplies, transportation and living allowance, 1 client with Language /Literacy After Degree
Program funding for tuition, books, travel & living allowance.

CRF Childcare ($341,703) — All program funding utilized, no deferred dollars

Funding is available for the creation of licensed daycare seats, assistance with building purchases, reno-
vation of daycare buildings to meet child care regulation standards, purchase of equipment and supplies
that are required for the establishment and upkeep of licensed daycare centers, daycare staff training and
development to run the programs and to meet the safety standards that are required to maintain a li-
censed childcare centre as well as provide wages for daycare employees.

Funding is based on the number of licensed day care seats operated by an Aboriginal community organi-
zation. A total of 70 licensed daycare seats are operated by DFN Aboriginal community organizations.
Initial childcare funding ($236,500) was allocated to three licensed daycares for day-to-day operation.
Two licensed daycares requested additional funding for day to day operational costs as well as license
requirement upgrades, an additional ($91,640) was allocated to these licensed daycares. In addition, the
childcare program provided ($13,563) for Early Childhood Development training, workshops and con-
ferences.
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EMPLOYMENT INSURANCE (EI) ($342,997)

A smaller portion of AHRDA funding comes from Employment Insurance Fund which is broken down
as follows:

Administration Budget ($51,450) — All program funding utilized, no funding returned

Two thirds of the administration budget was utilized by staffing of the AHRDA office. One third of the
administration budget was utilized by rent, utilities, financial services/audit fees, equipment/office sup-
plies and advertising.

DFN provides administration and advisory services to the communities by holding regional AHRDA
meetings, developing policies that will continue to meet the many diverse scenarios the communities are
facing when delivering programs for the clients. The AHRDA application and AHRDA policy are re-
viewed and updated on an annual basis. These amendments to the application and policy are based on
best practices, decisions made by the communities as well as recommendations from the Auditor.

El Programs ($264,774) — All program funding utilized, no funding returned
Funding is distributed to the 11 Aboriginal community organizations on a quarterly basis. The primary
authority and responsibility over education and training rests at the community level.

e Employment Assistance Services (EAS) $119,193 budget as per 2008/2009 work plan
Budgets indentify the maximum allowable for wages, training and administration fees. Wages are
pro-rated based on the percentage of time spent administering the AHRDA program. Communities
are not to exceed the employment assistance services allocated to their community. Two larger
communities employ LTA Coordinators or Career Development Officers to provide employment
assistance services, to administer the programs, coordinate the training needs and meet the account-
ability factor.

Communities utilized $88,427 on EI EAS to help offset the costs associated with administering the
AHRDA program on a local level. The unexpended $30,766 EI EAS balance has been reallocated
to the EI Client Program which will directly benefit clients through increased programming dollars
available.

e EIl Client Program $145,581 budget as per 2008/2009 work plan serving 75 clients

Budgets identify the maximum allowable for providing assistance to individuals returning to school,
post-secondary education, tuition cost for courses related to on-the-job training, wage subsidies, job
creation partnerships, skills development and self-employment initiatives. In order to meet training
priorities, communities are encouraged to partner with other agencies to design, develop and deliver
programs for their community as well as other regional communities. Community advisory services
are provided to all communities through phone calls, emails, regional meetings and community vis-
its.

Communities utilized $176,347 of client program funding on 124 clients. $145,581 was budgeted in
the work plan with an additional $30,766 reallocated from the EI EAS program. Clients benefited
directly from the reallocated EI EAS funds.
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El Persons with Disabilities ($13,518) — All program funding utilized, no funding returned
Funding is proposal driven. Aboriginal community organizations are requested to submit a proposal
complete with budget breakdown. All proposals must be accompanied by DFN AHRDA applications.
All potential applicants must be EI eligible or El reach-back. Each year there are a number of potential
clients who apply for this type of funding, however, they are not eligible for program funding as they are
neither El eligible nor an EI reach-back.

One community accessed the available funding for one EI eligible client who is upgrading their educa-
tion and will be pursuing their post-secondary education.

El Urban Initiatives ($13,255) — All program funding utilized, no funding returned

Funding is proposal driven. Aboriginal community organizations or Aboriginal people who have been
denied funding from the community in which they reside due to lack of funding are requested to submit
a proposal complete with budget breakdown. All proposals must be accompanied by DFN AHRDA ap-
plication and funding denial letter from the community in which you reside. All potential applicants
must be EI eligible or EI reach-back.

Dehcho First Nations coordinated the utilization of $13,255 by providing: 1 client with Bachelor in

Business Administration tuition, books, childcare and living allowance and 1 client with Indigenous In-
dependent Digital Filmmaking Diploma childcare and living allowance.

QUARTERLY REPORTING

Communities are responsible for the financial management and quarterly reporting of funds expended
under the program. An activity report and separate detailed financials for each program are required
within 10 days of the end of each fiscal quarter. The communities are fulfilling the requirements of the
accountability factors by submitting client data, financial reports and activity reports.

DFN is confident that the communities are delivering programs to meet the special needs of its Aborigi-
nal clients. The auditor deemed the programming was consistent with the Annual Work Plan and the
Capacity Building Plan. Expenses were consistent with the Annual Expenditure Plan and the Monthly
Forecast of Cash Flow documents rationalized quarterly funding advances.
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Auditor Recommendation

The auditor recommends that sub-agreement holders are provided with additional training required for

accurately reporting the training results as per their work plan. Through increased advice, support and

training, the auditor believes the sub-agreement holders will be able to carry out their agreement activi-
ties with a greater degree of professionalism.

STATISTICAL REPORTING — CONTACT IV DATABASE

Communities are responsible for collecting and reporting human resources statistical data required for
compliance with the AHRDA program. DFN enters data into Contact IV from the AHRDA client en-
quiry form, AHRDA application form, service contracts and follow-up documents copied to DFN. Cli-
ent data is uploaded to the Data Gateway on a quarterly basis. Service Canada extracts statistical infor-
mation and provides results to DFN on an annual basis.

e This fiscal year, the DFN AHRDA office entered 600 clients into Contact IV and successfully up-
loaded to the Data Gateway. The breakdown of clients is as follows: CRF clients 280, El clients
127, Youth clients 23, Disabled clients 1 and Unfunded clients 169.

e Service Canada produces Results Report with data from Contact IV, the case management system
presently used by Dehcho First Nations. These results are used to assess the overall effectiveness
and achievements of the AHRDA. Results for 2008/2009 have not been received in this office as of
June 12, 20009.

Auditor Recommendation

The auditor recommends that communities base their quarterly reports on their work plans, reporting
results and variances on an ongoing basis. Through work plan reporting, communities will indicate the
success of training initiatives and whether clients returned or became employed as a result of the training
initiative. Also, DFN will be better able to determine the results or impact of the program interventions
in terms of the Accountability Criteria and Targets determined in the AHRDA agreement. This method
of reporting will be implemented in the 2009/2010 fiscal year.

SUMMARY

Through the creation of quarterly community reporting templates which are based on individual commu-
nity work plans will ensure communities will improve their accountability criteria and will be in a better
position when identifying target results. Communities will learn the importance of developing and up-
dating a work plan to keep track of the success of training initiatives and to track the impact of client
training through employability results. In turn, DFN will be in a better position to accurately report on
the success of training initiatives throughout the region.

Based on the auditor recommendation, DFN AHRDA will be a better position to manage and administer
the AHRDA Successor Strategy.
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Language and Literacy Report
By Danita Allaire, Executive Secretary

Language Program

Dehcho First Nations received Language funding from Education, Cultural and Employment, GNWT.
Dehcho First Nations administration held the contribution agreement and distributed funds to the ten
member organizations. The community allocations are determined by formula (population percentage)
per community of the 1996 census.

For fiscal year 2008-2009 Dehcho First Nations received $224,500.00 and had an additional $32,838.01
that was returned to Dehcho First Nations from the communities in previous years. Allocation of the
funding went to the following member organizations:

Acho Dene Koe

Deh Gah Got’ie Dene Council
Jean Marie River First Nation
Ka’a’gee Tue First Nation
Katlodeeche First Nation
Liidlii Kue First Nation
Nahanni Butte Dene Band
Pehdzeh Ki First Nation
Sambaa K’e Dene Band

West Point First Nation

The purpose for this funding was to assist in the preservation and revitalization of the South Slavey lan-
guage through programs and activities as outline in the Strategic Language Plan.

To summarize a couple of the activities done by the member communities:

Liidlii Kue First Nation has been delivering the Language Program through the Kid’s Corner Day Care.
The children were taught Dene terms and words on a daily basis. They were shown the different stages
of making traditional mittens and snowshoes. The children were also taken out on the land by ski-doo to
look for animal tracks and to set rabbit snares.

Pehdzeh Ki First Nation had two cultural camps where the youth and elders went out on the land. The
youth learned place names in the Dene Language and traditional knowledge taught by local harvesters
and elders.
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Literacy Program
The community allocations are determined on a “first come, first serve” basis.

For fiscal year 2008-2009 Dehcho First Nations received $30,000.00 for the whole Dehcho region,
which was allocated to four members:

Deh Gah Got’ie Dene Council
Jean Marie River First Nation
Pehdzeh Ki First Nation
Sambaa K’e Dene Band

The purpose for this funding was to assist in promoting, enhancing and revitalizing the South Slavey
language in the Dehcho region.

To summarize a couple of the activities done by the member communities:

Deh Gah Got’ie Dene Council has done a number of activities such as publishing the Zhahti Kue Dic-
tionary, which is an on-going project, and collecting elders’ stories.

Sambaa K’e Dene Band has been working on final completion of printing the community book called
“Sambaa K’e Then and Now, Second Edition”.

For more information on the Language or Literacy Program, please contact the Dehcho First Nations.
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Youth/Elder Gathering Report

By Michael Cazon, Facilitator

Introduction

The Elders and youth gathering was in Jean Marie River NT from June 19 — 22, 2009. Elders and youth
delegates that attended were from all of the Dehcho First Nations communities. This year’s topic was on
spirituality and balance.

Facilitators

The facilitators at this gathering were all Dehcho First Nations members and very knowledgeable on the
Dene traditions and facilitated the ceremonies, teachings, and activities.

There were kinaesthetic teaching methods that were used. Oral traditions by the Elder’s and demonstra-
tions by the facilitators and the participants did the hands on activities.

Topics

The Drum: The drum was discussed in relation to being a sacred instrument and used to help in cere-
monies, celebrations, traditional hand games and for healing. The materials used to make the drum and
protocols for drummers and the importance of their role in the family and community.

Traditional Songs: Prayer songs were also discussed and how they were used honour all living things
and to assist individuals, families and communities.

Fire Feeding: Offerings were discussed and what items were used and how to set up and who should be
involved and when can it be done.

Spirituality: Participants were encouraged to prepare the ceremonial site and gather items to make of-
ferings and they were also asked to make tobacco offerings to the water, visit gravesites and encouraged
to do the opening and closing prayers each day with the drum. Quiet moments were also demonstrated
and encouraged. Elders shared the connection of land, spirituality and importance of adaptation.

Guest speakers also shared about post contact, Residential Schools Impacts and the importance of recon-
nect with our culture and move forward.

World Views: Elders shared on how they came into an environment where people were depending on
natural resources to live and abided by the spiritual and natural laws and strict codes of conduct to live in
communities.

Youth sat and listened and shared on the environment that they had came into, where there was a society
that depended on a wage economy to live.
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Conclusion

It was an amazing gathering where Elders and Youth felt safe and were able to communicate openly and
the youth were designated to take care of the Elders from their home communities. In closing there was
a recommendation to have more gatherings and to incorporate more teachings and hands on experiences.
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Audit Report
By Robert Stewart, Auditor

LEHCHD FIRST MATTONS

BOX &9, FORT SIMPSON., N.W.T. XO0E ONG

TEL : [(867) 695-2355-2610 FAX . (867) 695-2038
EMAIL: dcfn@dehchofirstnations.com

Management's Responsibility for Financial Reporting
May 30, 2009

To the Members
DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS
DEHCHO Region, Northwest Territories

The accompanying financial statements were prepared by management in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles appropriate in the circumstances. The
financial statements are considered by management to present fairly the First Nation's
financial position and results of operation.

The DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS maintains internal financial and management systems
and practices which are designed to provide reasonable assurance that reliable
financial and non-financial information is available on a timely basis and that the First
Nation acts in accordance with the laws of the Northwest Territories and Canada. The
First Nation's management recognizes it's responsibility for conducting the First Nation's
affairs in accordance with the requirements of applicable laws and sound business
principles, and for maintaining standards of conduct that are appropriate to a First
Nation.

The external auditor annually provides an independent, objective audit for the purposes
of expressing an opinion on the financial statements. He also considers whether
transactions which come to his notice in the course of this audit are, in all significant
respects, in accordance with the specified legislation.

Alison de Pelham
A/Executive Director
DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS
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Robert

Stewart
Chartered Box 2196
Accountant/ Yellovknife, N.¥.T. X1A 2P6
Hanagenent Tel (867) B873-5595
Consultants Fax (B67) B873-5596
Email: stevartr®peace.ca
AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members
DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS

DEHCHO Region, Northwest Territories

| have examined the Balance Sheet of the DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS as at March 31, 2009,
the Statements of Revenue and Expenditure, and Surplus for the year then ended. These
financial statements have been prepared on a non-consolidated basis for government funding
reporting purposes, with the unanimous consent of Council, in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles using differential reporting options available to non-
publlicly accountable enterprises, as described in Note 2 to the financial statements. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the First Nations' management. My responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

Except as explained in the following paragraphs, | conducted my audit in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards in Canada. Those standards require that | plan and
perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

The First Nation has investments in entities beneficially owned for the Members of the First
Nation as set out in Notes 2 and 4, carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Financial statements for the entities are available to the First Nation, and are monitored
separately, hence these financial statements are not prepared on a consolidated or equity
basis.

As indicated in Note 4 to the financial statements, the Settlement Agreement Trust Fund of the
Dehcho First Nations is administered by Trustees, and is audited by another accountant
periodically. Our audit scope was limited as we were instructed not to audit the Trust.
Accordingly, we were not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to
revenues, expenditures, assets, liabilities, excess of revenue (expenditures) and surplus or
reserves.

In my opinion, except for the effects of adjustments, if any, which might have been determined
to be necessary had | been able to audit the Trust as described in the preceding paragraph,
these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
First Nation as at March 31, 2009, and the results of its operations for the year then ended in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Canada.

May 30, 2009 /

Yellowknife, NW.T CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
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DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS
BALANCE SHEET
MARCH 31, 2009

ASSETS

CURRENT

Cash

Accounts receivable (Note 3)
Prepaid expenses

CAPITAL ASSETS (Notes 2d)

TRUST FUND ASSETS (Note 4)

LIABILITIES
CURRENT

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred Revenue (Note 5)

MEMBERS' EQUITY
TRUST FUND RESERVE (Note 4)

SURPLUS

APPROVED:

7 7

www.dehcho.org @
PR

2009

$2,348,641
1,499,605
11,500
3,859,746

1

13,376,936
$17.236,683

$1,450,805
1,304,936
2,755,741

13,376,936

1,104,006
14,480,942

$17.236.683

2008

$2,180,365
2,455,208
10,000
4,645,573

1

15,228,312

$19.873.886

$3,373,002
461,574
3,834,666

15,228,312

__810,908
16,039,220

$19.873.886

Dehcho First Nations
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DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS

STATEMENT OF SURPLUS AND RESERVES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

GENERAL OPERATING SURPLUS:

Balance, Opening

Excess revenue(expenditures) for the year

Transfer from (to) Reserve

Balance, Closing

TRUST FUND RESERVE:
Balance, Opening

Transfer from (to) Operating Surplus

Balance, Closing

Dehcho First Nations
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2009 2008

$ 810,908 $ 619,333
(1,558.278) 291,823

( 747,370) 911,156
1,851,376 (100.248)
$.1.104.006 $_810.908
200 2008
$15,128,062  $15,128,064
(1.851,376) 100,248
$13.376.936  $15.228.312
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DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

www.dehcho.org @
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2009 2008
(Note 7)
REVENUE
Indian and Northern Affairs Canada $ 4,249,328 $ 9,003,482
Human Resources Development Canada 1,412,314 1,412,314
Government of the NWT 416,744 368,056
Aboriginal Futures 25,000 827,396
Dept. of Fisheries and Oceans Canada 236,752 144,827
Imperial Qil 250,000 -
MGPIF - Industry Canada 350,000 -
Other revenue 145,905 197,597
Travel and expense recoveries 68,712 97,413
Transfer from (to) deferred revenue (946.430) (_298,665)
6,208,325 11,752,420
EXPENDITURES
Transfers to First Nations (Note 6) 1,856,491 3,659,465
Major AHRDA costs (Note 7 & Schedule 5) 137,047 1,214,032
Wages, benefits and other staff costs 1,160,726 1,147,784
Service contracts & subcontractors 1,120,070 3,111,654
Travel 879,649 1,001,045
Cash grants 278,170 295,237
Legal & other professional fees 391,377 318,160
Dehcho Economic Corporation 202,045 150,000
Office supplies 68,712 126,058
Office expenses 46,128 45,347
Bad debts 7,071 15,517
Sound and translation 85,000 100,966
Miscellaneous (GST recovery) ( 166,239) ( 57.97)
Rent 40,188 64,185
Equipment purchases 120,368 162,283
Telephone 50,910 49,057
Advertising & promotion 64,058 47,311
Donations 29,392 4,760
Childcare 2,075 1,988
Utilities 30,197 28,889
Scholarships 35,000 48,000
Repairs and maintenance 24,345 22,580
Admin Fees 212 804
Pheobe Nahanni Scholarship 6,000 4,000
Program funds returned ( 507.902) ( 306)
5,961,090 11,560,845
OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM _ 247,235 _ 191,575
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Trust income (loss) (net) (1,805,513) 100,248
(1,805,513) 100,248
EXCESS REVENUE (EXPENDITURES) $(_1.558.278) $_291.823

Dehcho First Nations
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DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ORGANIZATION

Dehcho First Nations (“DFN") is the government of aboriginal peoples in the traditional
Dehcho territory of the Northwest Territories. The membership consists of 12 member
community governments (10 First Nations and 2 Metis Locals). Dehcho First Nations is
registered as a not-for-profit corporation under the Corporations Act of Canada. The
First Nations Office administers the affairs of the Dehcho First Nations on behalf of its
Members. At present, the First Nations Office is economically dependent on the
Government of Canada.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) General
For purposes of its financial reporting, by virtue of the fact that the First Nations
is @ government, it applies the accounting principals for local governments as set
out in the CICA Public Sector Accounting Handbook (PSA Handbook). It should
be noted that recently there has been much discussion and research on the
appropriate accounting policies for First Nations, and these principals are
evolving.

b) Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
The First Nation has investments in the following entities beneficially owned for
the Members of the First Nation, carried at the lower of cost or estimated net
realizable value:

Beneficial

Ownership
Settiement Agreement Trust Fund 100%
Dehcho Economic Corporation 100%

Financial statements for the entities are available to the First Nation hence these
financial statements are not prepared on a consolidated or equity basis. These
non-consolidated financial statements are prepared primarily for government
funding reporting purposes, and are not in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles, as they are non-consolidated. These financial
statements are not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
the specified users or for any other purpose.
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DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009
NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

¢) Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with stated accounting
policies requires the First Nations to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures reported in the
financial statements. By their nature, these estimates are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The effect on the financial statements of changes to
such estimates and assumptions in future periods could be significant, although,
at the time of preparation of these statements, the First Nations believes the
estimates and assumptions to be reasonable. Some of the more significant
management estimates based on past experience relate to allowance for
doubtful accounts, the accounting for capital assets, investments and deferred
revenue valuation.

d) Inventory
Inventory of materials and general supplies is considered a cost of operations
and is not recorded on the balance sheet.

e) Capital Assets
Capital Assets are recorded as expenditures in the year of acquisition and shown
on the balance sheet at a nominal amount. Insured values at March 31, 2009

are as follows:
Office building $ 696,000
Office contents 204,000

$_900.000

f) Funding Agency Contract Surplus (Deficit)

According to contracts or contribution agreements with funding agencies,
primarily DIAND and Human Resources Development Canada, any contract
surplus is to be recovered by the funding agency and any contract deficit is to be
retained by the Dehcho First Nations. Financial statements of the First Nations
have not been reviewed by the funding agencies when these statements were
prepared. Accordingly, any adjustments as a result of the review will be
accounted for in the new year.

a) Delivery Agency Contract Surplus (Deficit)

According to contracts or contribution agreements with program delivery
agencies, primarily First Nations located in the Dehcho communities, any
contract surplus is to be recovered by the Dehcho First Nations and any contract
deficit is to be retained by the respective First Nation. Financial statements of
the various delivery agents have not been reviewed by the Dehcho First Nations
when these statements were prepared. Accordingly, any adjustments as a
result of the review will similarly be accounted for in the new year.

www.dehcho.org @ Dehcho First Nations
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DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

h) Financial Instruments

The First Nations' financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and deferred revenues. It is
management's opinion that the First Nations is not exposed to significant interest,
or credit risks arising from these instruments. Unless otherwise noted, the fair
value of these financial instruments approximate their carrying value.

i) Revenue and Expenditure Recognition

The Nation follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions received.
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are incurred or committed to. Unrestricted contributions are recognized
as revenue when received if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Expenditures are recognized in
the year in which legal title transfers or services have been rendered, or

commitments have been made to match related funding.

NOTE 3 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Indian and Northern Affairs Canada
Aboriginal Futures

Human Resources Development Canada
Dept. Of Fisheries & Oceans
Canadian Boreal Initiative

Settlement Agreement Trust Fund
Mackenzie Gas Project

Goods & Services Tax

Acho Dene Koe

Imperial Oil

Other

Less Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Dehcho First Nations @
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2009 2008

$ 534,209 $1,216,611
10,325 413,698
428,528 639,516
103,626 68,760
3,306 23,405
41,089 36,508
350,000 -
42,748 51,086

- 50,378

25,000 -
46,572 40,738

(_85.798) (85492)
$1.499.605  $2.455.208
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DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009

NOTE 4 SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT TRUST FUND

During 2006/07, Dehcho First Nations completed an agreement with the Government of
Canada related to the participation of DFN in the environmental and regulatory review of
the Mackenzie Gas Project. Pursuant to the Agreement, $10,000,000 was paid into the
DFN Master Trust August 21, 2006, and a further $5,000,000 paid into the Trust June 1,
2008. CIBC Trust Comoration of Canada acts as the Corporate Trustee for the Trust,
and ensures funds are received, invested, disbursed and audited as authorized under
the Trust Agreement. The requirement to provide audited financial statements for 2009
has been waived by the Investment Management Board which is responsible for
developing and approving investment strategies, projects and accountability.

Dehcho First Nations recorded the proceeds of the settlement, and investment income
eamed net of expenditures, in its revenues according to the Report of the Trustees for
the period ended March 31, 2009. These amounts are unaudited. Trust assets are
shown separately on the balance sheet, and a corresponding amount has been
transferred to the Trust Fund Reserve.

NOTE 5 DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue is comprised of amounts received but not yet earned as follows:

2009 2008

Band Employee Benefits $ 37,305 $ 45,668
Self Government - 4,088
Contaminants - 532
IRDA Resource Royalties 1,072,222 150,000
Access & Benefits Negotiations 14,526 -
ADK Negotiations 35,079 -
Aboriginal Capacity 2,508 406
Mackenzie Gas 80,662 43,036
Gathering Strength - 18,747
Economic Plan 25,000 -
Community Progs. and Negotiations - - _13.438
Total DIAND 1,278,170 275,915

ASEP - 89,733
Dehgah Alliance Society - 69,160
Protected Area Strategy/PKFN 17,089 17,088
CBI - Watershed 9,676 9677

$1.304.936 $461.574
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DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2009

NOTE 6 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the entities outlined in Note 2(b), Dehcho First Nations is related in terms of
common membership to all Local First Nations and Metis Locals and enters into
transactions with these entities in the normal course of operations at normal trade terms.

The following transactions were recorded with related parties:

2009 2008
REVENUES
Settlement Agreement Trust Fund $ 50,443 -
EXPENDITURES

Acho Dene Council $ 168,305 $ 327,766
DEHCHO Economic Corporation 202,045 150,000
Deh Gah Gotie Dene Council 306,186 682,944
Fort Providence Metis Local 40,000 123,122
Fort Simpson Metis Local 56,556 196,892
Jean Marie River First Nation 94,484 259,975
Ka'a'gee Tu First Nation 61,557 121,954
Katlodeeche First Nation 283,894 422,286
Liidlii Kue First Nation 494,541 698,641
Nahanni Butte Dene Band 148,005 197,903
Nogha Enterprises Ltd. - -
Pehdzeh Ki First Nation 85,733 420,726
Sambaa K'e Band Council 116,491 207,256
Sambaa K'e Development Corporation - -
Settlement Agreement Trust Fund 9,580 -
Tthenaago Development Corporation - -
West Point First Nation 739 -

$2.058,536 $3.809.465

NOTE 7 COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The format of the Statement of Revenue and Expenditures of the current year has been
changed with respect to the allocation of AHRDA Costs by type of expenditure. The
comparative amounts for expenditures could not be restated.

NOTE 8 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A statement of cash flows has not been prepared as, in the opinion of management, it
would not provide additional meaningful information.
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DEH CHO FIRST NATIONS
SCHEDULE OF CONSOLIDATED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH M1, 2009

Com  QIANDS! DIANDS2 AHRDA ~ ASEP  Qiher Totn!
2 3 L] 5 n

} 8) (Seh
REVENUES:
4020 DIAND $815.000 52,009.043 $1424376 $0 0 0 4240328
4021 DIAND - Omher Revenues 0 o ] 0 0 0 L
4030 GNWT 25,000 0 0 0 0 391,744 418744
4040 HRDC 12,000 0 0 1412314 0 0 1424314
4050 Other 66,726 250000 350,000 [} ] 24500 §9.26
4060 Depl. of Fisheries & Oceans 0 0 0 [ 0 230782 238752
4070 Abarigina! Futures [} 0 [} 0 25,000 0 25,000
4100 Denatons ] 0 ] 0 ] 6,700 6,700
4110 Woge Recoverios 1,508 o [} 0 ] [} 1,508
4120 Trove! Recoveriss 9,587 0 1] 0 o 1] 9,507
4130 Recoverias 42,484 2,703 0 [} 0 13,028 59,115
4150 Rental income 9,000 o 0 0 (] [} 9,000
4200 Bales 7.583 o ] 0 0 ] 7.583
4220 Program Intemna) Transfers 0 0 ] 0 0 0
4240 Employes Contributions 10,403 14,767 [] 6,553 136 [} 31,859
4250 Deferred Revenus Transfers -16,637 -28872  -959,848 0 102 56624  -D45430
4440 Interest Rovenua 31,818 0 0 1,584 0 [} 33,300
4480 Admin Feas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4490 Progrom Funds Retumed B 114,200 -0 2248 12,080 0 120,811
Total rovenues 1,014 B3 814538 1,422,700 37307 732047 _ 6,364,308
EXPENDITURES:
5010 Genero! Administrotion tronsfer 31,889 31,859
5020 CAF Employment Lobour Market 20,881 ] 20,851
5021 CRF Smafl Urban Inftintives 24210 24279
5022 CRF First Mations Chid Care 11,852 0 1n.gs2
5023 CRF Yeuth Programs 0 ]
5024 CRF Persons with Disabdities 0 L]
5025 CRF Caopacity 6,671 6,871
5020 El Program Administrotion 10,871 10,671
503 El Employment Benefits and Suppornt 16,869 16,969
5032 El Smad Urban Progrom 13,255 13,255
503 El Porsons with Disabfties o 0
3410 Wogos & Banefits 191,782 360,676 127,555 138,080 4285 111255 1,142,835
5450 Casual Woges 12,587 1,005 0 0 3,150 1,100 18,772
5610 Accounting & Legal 0,702 220,745 ] [] o 7381 265918
5815 Adverlising & Promotions 14,049 25457 2,225 0 0 18,126 60,758
5616 Equipmeni Renia! 188 0 0 0 [ 0 168
5620 Bad Debls T.0M1 0 0 ] 0 0 T.071
5525 Cash Grants 109,400 32,400 0 300 69450 278,170
5630 GST Unrocovered (Recovery) -166.464 0 0 0 0 0 -166.404
5634 Professional Services 48,421 58,040 16,990 0 0 125459
5035 132,720 e8sTe2 257,047 0 8791 8721 1120070
5836 Sound & Tranalation 5,703 4241 12,34 0 0 24522 85,000
5840 Couriet & Postage 8248 3 219 0 kL 1,164 9,705
5601 Copildd Expenditures 0 L] ] o 0 0 0
Insurnnce 18,085 1] 0 o L] 0 18,995
5690 Interest & Bank Charges 5698 0 0 210 0 n 5880
5605 Licencos,Regist & Membershis 5,861 30 100 0 0 6,261
5700 Materials 322% 27,285 282 42 " 6,191 68,712
5705 Equipment 18,337 10,579 3.207 ] 0 61253 91,435
Equipment User Fees 28,489 [} o 0 ] 444 20,533
5710 Jonétoral Supplies 1403 0 0 o [] 0 1,483
5720 Property Taxes 3,506 0 0 o 0 o 3,508
5740 Miscelsneous 625 26 0 3300 0 ] 4.1%
5741 Denotion 20,382 L] L] L] 20,352
5760 Rent 10272 9.762 870 0 0 13284 40,188
5765 Repair & Maintenance 24,100 248 [} L] 0 0 24,345
8770 Vehicls Payment ['] L] 0 ] 0 0 0
5771 Scholorships 41,000 0 [} 0 0 0 41,000
5700 Telephone 18,752 1,178 18,788 0 0 12,184 50,910
5785 Travel - Alr 21,162 176,995 11,005 788 0 44,881 254,640
5768 Travel - Accommeodation 30,330 109,386 12,266 2,850 0 54247 215,108
5787 Trovel - Miengs 38,117 78,887 20251 2,39 o 422 178,806
5788 Trove! - Per Diem 30106 127,263 25,605 3,841 82 43200 230,097
5789 Chidcare 1,030 04 50 /] 0 n 2,075
5780 Power 18372 ] 0 o [} ] 18372
5701 Heating Fue! 8,850 0 0 0 0 0 6,850
5702 Water & Sewer 2175 0 0 0 0 0 2175
5704 Admin Fees 718 191,74 116,538 0 0 3010 212
5600 Loss in Trust Fund 1,851,378 0 0 L] 0 0 1851376
5605 Revenues Retumed 55,344 0 -284,700 1,834 0 41,083 379293
£810 Res, Royatly Senvice Controcts [ 0 [ [ 0 [ o
5950 Transfers between programs <21,845 83,039 o 1] 0 61,004 0
52,045 ] 150,000 o 0 0 202,045
5962 Metis Resaarch o ] o ] 0 0 ]
5870 Woge 0 [} [} 0 ] 0 0
5671 Lid Kus First Nation 62,090 0 0 382709 53N 44431 dp45401
5972 Deh Goh Gotie Dens Councd 23,062 0 0 202,809 o 80,228 306,183
Kstiodeeche First Notion 10,000 L] 40,000 210,687 0 23,307 283,694
8974 Pehdzeh KI First Nation 10,708 202 51,007 0 23637 857
5075 Koogeo Tu First Nation 1" L] L] 42673 0 1112 01,557
5076 JMR Firsl Nation 0 40,000 34,904 0 13,728 094,484
5877 Nahann! Butte Dene Councd 26,009 13,430 85654 17,209 0 40613 148,005
5070 FLBimpson Molis Loca! [ [ 40,000 16,556 [] [] 58,550
5850 Fit Providence Melis ] 4 0 o 40,000
£881 Sembano Ke Firsl Nation 0,532 11070 0 .77 0 58,511 116.401
5992 Wost Point First Nation 0 [ 0 ] [] T30
5833 Acho Dens Koe 0 0 0 139870 0 20435 168,305
5604 FilLiord Metis Nation ] ] '] 0 ] 0 ]
Total expenditurcs 3560307 236928 B4, 142,700 21,068 42,563
EXCESS
(EXPENDITURES) 31573002 3385 3% 30 $15340 3577 -31,558.278
www.dehcho.org /@ Dehcho First Nations
- Annual Report 2008-2009




DEH CHO FIRST NATIONS
SCHEDULE OF CORE REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2009

REVENUES:
4020 DIAND
4021 DIAND - Other Ravenuos
4030 GNWT
4040 HRDC
4050 Othor
4060 Dept. of Fisharios & Oceans

4150 Rental Income

4200 Sales

4220 Program intemnal Transfers

4240 Employee Contributions

4250 Deforred Revenue Transfers

4440 Inlerest Revenuo

4480 AdminFeos

4450 Program Funds Relumned
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
5410 Wages & Benefiis

1,506

20,354
6,000

815
0

-0
904699 56736 53,051

353,612
12,557
29,792
12,873

T.071
31,000
82,006

5678

19,372

2175
317,006

267,458

5970 Wago Replacoments/Recoveries

5971 Liidli Kue First Nation
5572 Deh Gah Gotle Dene Council
5973 Katiodeoche First Nation
5974 Pahdzeh Ki First Nation
5375 Kaageo Tu Firs! Nation
5976 JMR First Nation
5977 Nahanni Butte Deno Council
5979 Fi Simpson Melis Local
5880 FI Providence Metis
5881 Sambaa Ke First Nation
5982 West Point First Nation
5983 Acho Deng Koe
5884 Fi Liard Mstis Natien
Total expenditures

EXCESS REVENUES
{EXPENDITURES)

Dehcho First Nations
Annual Report 2008-2009

737,427 78451 53,050

167,271

$14,425

9,597
22131
3,000
7.583

10,403
8,363

SCHEDULE 2

10,403
-18,637
31,815

5|8

=11
N

0 0 1014485

38,170
1,088
3,885
166,464

3127
2,587

7783

29,392
1,040

12617
3113
13,245
4,680

-5,224 875

9,580 14,005

-30,000

188

14,250 6,750

k1

6,120

2,887

2941 1.084

3,636

-28,434
-10,081
52,045

12,455
1,958
2,666

17434

10,725

1,041
4,803

521 12

5718

1,764

4,042
150

1,851,376
-33,757

-11,864 -237,458

82,090
23,082
10,000
10,708
1",m

5,855
26,009

9,532

3425000

20 1,851,376 0

1351

- 1851376

1,57.

www.dehcho.org



DEH CHO FIRST NATIONS SCHEDULE 3
SCHEDULE OF DIAND CONTRIBUTION REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES I

FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2009

DehCho Aborigingl Cop.  Access & ADK

G 0 G 0 0 Procoss &
Strongth 400k Strenath CFA #4Preparedonss  Claims GAP Neootialions Nogoliations TOTAL

REVENUES: {Contr.) (Contr.) (Conir.) (Conir.) {Contr.) {Centr.} (Contr.)
4020 DIAND $400,000 $500,000 $700,000 $191.843 $73.000 5145000 $2,000,043
4021 DIAND - Other Revenuss ]
4030 GNWT ]
4040 HRDC ]
4050 Other 250,000 250,000
4080 Depl. of Fishores & Oceans 0
4070 Aboriginal Futures 0
4100 Denations 0
4110 Wego Recoverles 0
4120 Trave! Recoverios 0
4130 Rocoverias 441 2,202 2,703
4150 Rental Income 0
4200 Salos 0
4220 Program Inlemal Transfers 0
4240 Employee Contributions 2205 4220 8,242 14,767
4250 Defemred Revenuo Tronsfers 22,835 2,102 -14,526 35079 28,872
4440 Interest Revenuo o
4480 Acmin Feos 0
4490 Program Funds R 24,957 5,145 84,194 1

Total revenues 427,162 527,487 715750 191,843 82,002 308,474 109.921 2,352,837

EXPENDITURES:
5410 Wagos & Benafits 61,742 128,576 166918 12,640 369,876
5450 Casual Weges 1,965 1,865
5810 Accounting & Lagal 90,101 1,040 135,803 1800 228,745
5815 Advertising, Promotions & Rane 1,600 2,599 3,148 18,113 25457
5616 Equipmen! Rental 1]
5620 Bad Debls /]
5025 Cash Grants 11,650 14625 42015 6,700 8,600 14,600 11,150 109,400
5630 GST Unrecovered 0
5634 Professional Services 35,847 13,774 49,41
5635 Subcontractors 80,742 116,141 154720 93,119 34575 182,984 23504 eas792
5036 Sound & Translation 6,070 20,390 13,539 1872 300 300 42471
5840 Courler & Postags 43 43
5661 Capital Expenditures 0
5683 Insuranco o
5890 Interest & Bank Charges 1]
5695 Licencos,Rogist & Memborship 300 300
5700 Materials 1,826 24033 600 63 7 g 199 27,285
5705 Equpment Purchasss 1,348 8657 576 10,579
5708 Equipmen User Foo 0
5710 Janitoral Supplios o
5720 Property Taxes U]
5740 Miscellansous 228 228
5760 Reni 450 4,538 2,608 ags 1270 300 9,762
5765 Repair & Mainicnanco 246 248
5770 Vehicle Paymen ]
5771 Scholarships 0
5780 Telephona & intormnot 12 18 1,148 1,176
5785 Trovel - Alr 9,737 59,371 52,722 12,448 41,487 1232 176,895
5786 Travel - Accommodation 10,561 37,669 33,400 8422 88 14,338 4628 109,388
5787 Travel - Micago 8,507 15,589 16,667 10,688 5,043 26: 11,524 78,087
5768 Travol - Per Diem 20,205 50,204 25,661 13,555 4,842 0,688 2818 127,263
5789 Chidcaro Lral 433 804
5790 Power 0
5791 Hoating Fus! o
5792 Water & Sowor 0
5794 Admin Fees 40,000 $0,000 70,000 19,194 5,000 13,580 197,774
5600 Loss in Trust Fund 0
5805 Rovenues Retumed o
5810 Res. Royally Service Contracts 0
5950 Trensfers between programs 44,058 28,000 10,081 83,039
5060 Economic Davelopment 1]
5062 Metis Resoarch L]
5870 Wega Roplacomenis/Recovories 0
5871 Liid3 Kue First Nation 1]
5972 Deh Gah Gotie Dene Councll 1]
5973 Kafiodeecha First Notion o
5974 Pehdzeh K First Nation Fi: 7] 202
5075 Kazagoe TuFirst Nation 0
5976 JMR First Nation 0
5977 Nahanni Butte Dene Councll 13,430 13,430
5979 Fit Simpson Metis Loca! ]
5880 Ft Providenco Metis 0
5881 Sambaa Ke First Nation 11,670 11,670
§382 Wesl Point First Naticn 739 139
5883 Acho Deno Koo ]
5884 Fi Liard Metis Notion 0

Total expondituros 427160__ 527,407 715740 182,331 82,001 08,474 100,020 2389222

EXCESS REVENUES

{EXPENDITURES) $1 -$0 £0 -$388 $1 0 # 4385
www.dehcho.org @ Dehcho First Nations
| T Annual Report 2008-2009




DEH CHO FIRST NATIONS SCHEDULE 4
BCHEDULE OF DIAND CONTRIBUTION REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES [cont)

FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2009

IRDA IRDA IRMA Youlh Band
Ol&Gas Rosource Resource Summer  Manager RIP G&C
Proied Royollles Prossures MGPIF Emplovment Workshop  Pignning  Workshop  IOTAL

REVENUES: (Cont) FTP (Contr) (Comntr.) (Contr) (Contr) (Contz) {Contr)
4020 DIAND $150,000 $1.000,000 $240,000 $19.272 $1,188 $13,000 $916 $1,424,376
4021 DIAND - Other Revenues 0
4030 GNWT 0
4040 HRDC 0
4050 Other $350,000 350,000
4060 Dept. of Fisherles & Oceans ]
4070 Aboriginal Futures 0
4100 Donations 0
4110 Wagn Recoverios o
4120 Travel Recoverios 0
4130 Rocoveries [
4150 Renta! Incomos 1]
4200 Sales 0
4220 Progemm Intema! Transfers 0
4240 Employoo Contributions 0
4250 Defemed Rovenue Transfors 822,222 37,626 -950,848
4440 Intresl Rovenue o
4480 Admin Feos 0
4490 Program Funds R 0 0 -0 0

Total revenuos 150,000 77,778 240000 312,374 18,272 1,168 13.000 816 814,528

EXPENDITURES:
5410 Wages & Benefils 40,421 67,878 16,259 127,555
5450 Casual Wages []
5610 Accounting & Lega! 0
5615 Advertising & Promotions 2225 2,225
5618 Equipment Rental o
5620 Bad Debts 0
5625 Cash Grants 1,800 800 26,600 32,400
5830 GST Unrecovered 0
5634 Professional Services 21,776 37284 59,040
5835 Subcontractors 167,284 78,083 11,700 257,047
58)8 Sound & Translation 12,304 12,304
5840 Courter & Postage 219 219
5861 Capital Exponditures 0
5885 Insurance 0
5880 Interes! & Bank Charges 0
5685 Licences Regist & Membership 100 100
5700 Materials 2822 2922
5705 Equipmeni Purchases 2733 534 3267
5708 Equipmenl User Fee 0
5710 Janilorial Supplles 0
5720 Property Taxes 0
5740 Miscelaneous 0
5760 Rent 870 870
5765 Repair & Malnlonance o
5770 Vehicle Payment 0
5771 Scholarships /]
5780 Telephone & intemst 18,788 18,788
5785 Travel - Alr 1,788 7820 694 703 11,005
5788 Travel - Accommodation 1,023 1,127 138 12288
5787 Trave! - Miloage 1,975 18,210 [ 20251
5788 Travel - Por Diem 890 24,392 m 52 25805
5780 Chidcare 50 50
5780 Power 0
5791 Heating Fuol 0
5702 Water & Sower 1]
5704 Admin Foes 15,000 100,000 155 1,300 83 116,538
5800 Loss In Trust Fund 0
5805 Revenues Retumed 84,502 173,122 47,078 -284,700
5810 Res. Royalty Senvice Contracls 0
5850 Transfers between programs [}
5860 Economic Development 150,000 150,000
5970 e s o
5971 Liidi Kue First Nation o
5972 Deh Gah Gotio Dene Coundl! 0
5973 Kattodeocho First Nation 40,000 40,000
5974 Pehdzeh Ki First Nation 0
5975 Kaagee Tu Flrst Nation 0
5876 JMR Firsl Nation 40,000 40,000
5977 Nahann Bulte Dene Council 86,654 86,654
5878 F1 Simpson Metls Local 40,000 40,000
5880 Ft Providenco Metis 40,000 40,000
5981 Sambaa Ko First Nation 0
5882 West Point First Nation ]
5883 Acho Deno Koo 0
5384 F1 Liard Motio Nation 0

Total exponditures 149,867 77,778 239890 312373 19,259 1.158 13,000 B804 814,435

EXCESS REVENUES

(EXPENDITURES) $34 30 $1 $1 $13 $32 $0 $12_____$93

Dehcho First Nations
Annual Report 2008-2009
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DEH CHO FIRST NATIONS
SCHEDULE OF ABORIGINAL HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2000

AHRDA Smnll

SCHEDULE 5

ElPersons  El Sman

CRF  Copacity ChidCare  General Lobour  Urbon Youth El El Benufits El Generol With Urban
REVENUES: I

4020 DIAND 0

4021 DIAND - Other Revenues 0

4030 GNWT 0

4040 HRDC S0 $22474 $341,703 $138,009 3402055 $242790 450,798 0 $264,774 $51,450 $12518  $13255 1412314

4050 Other [+] L] 0 0 U] 1] 1] 0 ] L] 1] o 0

4000 Depl of Fisheries & Ocoans 4] 1] 0 L] 0 0 1] o ] L] 0 4]
Aberiginal Futures 1] 1] ] 0 o 0 ] 0 ] ] 0 0 ]

4100 Donatons ] 0 0 0 1] 0 1] 0 [+] 0 0 0 0

4110 Wage Recoveries 0

4120 Travel Recoveries 0

4130 Rocoverigs 0 o o 0 o 0 0 0 0 1] 0 0 0

4150 Rentsl Incomos 0 0 [+] ] o 0 0 0 ] ] 0 ] 0

4200 Salss 0 U] L] 0 L] 0 0 0 0 1] 0 ] ]

4220 Program Intemal Transfers 0 /] o 0 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 o 0

4240 Employee ] ] 0 6,553 o 0 0 o ] 0 '] ] 6,553

4250 Deferred Revenus Transfers 0 o 0 0 0 0 1] 0 L] 0 ] 0 Q

4440 Interest Revortug 0 1] 0 1,584 U] ] 0 0 ¢ 0 0 ] 1,584

4480 Admin Fees 0 o 0 L] ] 1] 4] 0 0 0 0 ]

4480 Progrom Funds Retumed ] ] 0 414 0 o 1,834 0 0 o 0 '] 2,248
Total 022474 341703 145,560 492055 24270 52632 0 264774 51,450 13518 13255 1422700
EXPENDITURES:

5018 General Administrasen transfer 0 0 3481 25,883 0 1] 0 1] 0 2,545 0 0 31,889

5020 CRF Employment Labour Mark 0 1] 0 0 20881 0 0 U] 4] 0 0 L] 20,851

5021 CRF Small Urban Initiativas ] ] 0 0 0 24,270 ] U] 4] 0 o 0 24279

5022 CRF First Notions Child Core 0 70 1,782 0 0 0 0 0 4] 0 ] ] 11,852

5023 CRF Youh Programs ] /] 0 0 0 0 0 ] [+] 0 U] 0 0

5024 CRF Persons with Disab¥tias 0

5025 CRF Capadity 0 6,6M o 0 o 0 1] ] ] o 1] 1] 6,871

£030 El Program 0 [ 0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 10,971 0 0 108M

5031 El Employment Benafits and 5t 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16,869 0 0 0 18,069

5032 El Smal Urban 0 ] /] 0 0 0 0 1] 0 0 ] 13255 13,255

5034 El Persons with Disabllities 0 ] /] L] ] 0 0 1] 0 0 1] 0 o

5410 Wagos & Benofits 0 ] 4] 105819 0 ] o 1] ] 32,181 (1] 0 135030

5450 Caosuni Wages ]

5610 Accounting & Legat ]

5615 Advertising & Premotions ]

5616 Equipment Rental ]

5620 Bad 0

5625 Cash Grants 0

5630 Cash Shor/Over o 0 0 0 [+ L] 0 o 1] '] ] 0 0

5634 Professionn! Services ] 0 ] 2zn7 0 ] 0 0 0 4,682 U] ] 16,990

0 o ] 0 ] 0 ] 1] 0 ] 1] ]

5838 Sound & Translation 0

5640 Courler & Postoge 0

5881 Capilnl Expenditures 0

0

5690 Interest & Bonk Charges /] 0 o 210 L] 0 0 ] 0 0 0 '] 210

5685 Licencas Rogist & Membership o 0 ] 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 a o 0

5700 Materials 0 0 ] 42 0 /] L] ] ] U] 0 0 42

5705 Equipment Purchasas o

5706 Equipment Usor Fee 0 0 0 0 0 o [] 0 0 0 0 L] 0

5T0 Janfiorial Supphies 0

ST20 Property Taxes 1]

5740 Mmcolaneous ] ] o 2,409 1] ] 0 0 0 1] 0 0 3300

5760 Rem o L] 0 o 1] ] 0 ] 0 1] 0 o 0

5765 Repair & Molntenanco o L] 0 o ] 0 U] 0 0 0 /] 0 0

5770 Vehicla Poymant 0

5771 Scholarships 0 0 1] 0 '] 0 (1] o 0 0 ] 0 0

5780 Telephone 0

5785 Teavel- Alr ] 788 0 '] ] o 0 0 0 ] o 0 788

5786 Trovel - Accommodation ] 2,850 o ] 0 0 ] 0 '] 1] ] 0 2,850

5787 Travel - M2geago 0 2,320 o o 1] ] 0 /] 0 ] 0 U] 2,320

5788 Trove! - Per Diom ] 3841 0 ] 1] [} ] 4] 1] /] ] 0 34

o 0 ] 0 ] 0 0 0 o /] 1] 1] 0

5790 Power L]

5791 Heating Fus! 0

5792 Water & Sewer 0

5704 Admin Fees 0

5800 Loss in Trust Fund o
Revenues Retumad 1] '] 0 '] o 0 1,834 1] o '] '] o 1,834

5850 Transfers botween programs 0 o L] /] ] [] o /] o 0 o 0 ]

5960 Eccnomic o

5971 1Lad% Kus First Nation '] 0 159901 0 117207 0 12,100 o 73,500 1] ] 0 3|79

5972 Deh Gah Gotis Dene Coundil ] 457 0 0 118927 ] 18,041 /] 65,451 0 0 0 202606

5973 Katodoeche First Nation ] 0 140000 0 43008 '] 4440 0 2390 0 ] 0 210587

5974 Pehdzah Ki Firet Nation ] 0 1] 0 371 o 4.008 0 9,856 0 0 0 51,007

5975 Kaagee Tu First Nation ] ] 0 0 17783 ] 1834 ] 9,558 0 13,518 4] 42873

5976 JMR First Notion ] 3810 ] 0 19844 ] 1,958 0 10,184 1] o 1] 34804

5977 Nazhanni Butia Dena Councll ] '] [+] 0 14n2 0 22 0 85 ] [} 0 17200

5979 F1 Simpson Mstis Loca! 0 o 0 0 10087 ] 1.041 0 5428 1] ] 1] 16,556

5980 Ft Providence Metis 1] 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0 L] ] ] '] 0

5881 Sambaa Ko First Nation 0 1,438 0 0 404 0 2419 1] 11,518 1] '] 0 38,778

5882 West Pein! First Nation ] 0 Q 0 a 0 0 1] o 0 0 0 o

5833 Acho Dene Koo 0 0 28559 0 7188 0 2,738 0 3888 (1] 0 0 139.870
Total cxpenditures 0 22474 341703 146,560 492,055 24279 52632 0 264,774 51450 13516 13,255 1.422.700.
EXCESS REVENUES

RES) 050 0 $0 %0 0 $0 80 %0 $0_____ %0 0____ %0

www.dehcho.org /@
e
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SCHEDULE 8
DEH CHO FIRST NATIONS

SCHEDULE OF ABORIGINAL SKILLS AND EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 34, 2009

Basic Skills Employment&  Industrial
Admin. & Pro-Emp. Support Skills
Broject Brojpct Project Bmijedd  JOTAL

REVENUES:
4020 DIAND
4021 DIAND - Other Rovenuos
4030 GNWT
4040 HRDC
4050 Other
4060 Depl of Fisherios & Oceans
4070 Aboriginal Futures $25.000
4100 Donations
4110 Wage Recoverias
4120 Travel Rocoveries
4130 Recoverias
4150 Rental Incomo
4200 Sales
4220 Program Intemal Transfers
4240 Employeo Contributions 136
4250 Defemed Revonus Transfers 102 $0 %0 $0
4440 Intorest revenue
4480 Admin Fees
4490 Program Funds Rotumed _ 12,069 12,069

Total rovenuos 25,238 0 [1] 12,089 37,307

]
o

....
coB88ccccoccboccoal

EXPENDITURES:
5410 Wages & Benefits 4285 4,285
5450 Caosual Wagos 3150 3,150
5610 Accounting & Legal o
5615 Advertising & Promotions
5616 Equipment Rental
5620 Bad Debls
5825 Cash Gronls 300
5630 Cash Short/Over

5635 Subcontractors 8791
5535 Sound & Translation
5840 Courlsr & Postagn 3s
5661 Caplta! Expenditures
5685 Insurance
5690 Inlerest & Bank Chamges
5695 Licences,Regist & Membership
5700 Materials 14
5705 Equipmont Purchases
5710 Janitorial Supplies
5720 Property Taxes
5740 Miscollaneous
5760 Rent
5765 Repair & Maintenanco
5770 Vehide Payment
S771 Scholarships
5780 Telaphono
5785 Travel - Alr
5786 Travel - Accommodalion
5787 Travel - Mieage
5788 Traved - Per Diem 8z
5789 Chideare
5780 Power
5791 Hoating Fuel
5792 Water & Sewer
5794 Admin Fees
5800 Loss In Trusl Fund
5805 Revenues
5850 Transfers botwoon programs
5960 Economic
5971 Lisdl Kuo First Nation 5311
5972 Deh Gah Golie Dene Council
5973 Katiodooche First Nation
5974 Pehdzeh Ki First Nation
5975 Kaogoeo Tu First Nation
5976 JMR Firsl Nation
5077 Nahanni Bulto Dene Council
5979 Ft Simpson Malis Local
53980 FiProvidenco Motis
5881 Sambaa Ke First Nation
5882 Wes! Poin! First Nation
5983 Acho Dene Koe
5984 FiLiard Matis Local

Total oxpenditures _ 21,968 0 0 0

(73
SOOO

:
g
|
i

ccoococoeccofloocooooocooooiococcolie

o
]

glﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁoaﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

EXCESS REVENUES
(EXPENDITURES) $3.270 80 $0__$12,080 $15340
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SCHEDULE?
DEH CHO FIRST NATIONS

SCHEDULE OF OTHER REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2009

Regonal  Regional Local Land Youth
Indergovt  Winder Longuage Longuoge  AAROM  Speciss  WikdHe Orum  Contaménants Elders8  Planning  Ecology DAS

REVENUES: Bund
4020 DIAND 0
4021 DIAND - Other Rovenuas. ]
4030 GNWT $51,000 $5000 3224500  $30,000 M8 310352 31,500 $15,000 353,048 391,744
4040 HRDC 0
4050 Other $4,500 $5.000 $15,000 24,500
4060 Dept of Fisheries & Ococns $235,752 238752
4070 Aboriginal Futures 0
4100 Donations $6,700 6,700
4110 Wigs Recovenss 1]
4120 Trovel Recoveries ]
4130 Recoverias 389 11,382 1,800 657 13928
4150 Rentn! incoms o
4200 Sales ]
4220 Program Intemal Transfers %0 1]
4240 Employee o
4250 Deferred Revenue Tronsfors 512 -10,866 69,160 58,824
4440 Interes! Revenus 0
4480 Admin Fees L]
4490 Program Funds Retumed -0 0 0 £

Total revenues 51 000 224 000 238841 12728 10352 6,000 532 26,700 16600 42177 63,817 732 447

EXPENDITURES:
5020 CRF Employment Lodour Market ]
5022 CRF First Nations Chad Care 0o
5410 Woges & Benefits 39,563 71405 50 63 111,255
5450 Cosunl Weges 1100 1,100
5610 Accounting & Lega! 1381 7.381
5615 Advertising & Promotions 10,042 1422 6,062 18,126
5616 Equipment Rentnl ]
5620 Bad Debts o
5825 Caosh Grants 14,100 24,450 11,600 1.800 7550 2750 69,450
5630 GST Unrecovered 0
5534 Professionsl Bervices 1]
5635 583 1,850 15,304 4,400 13,357 12 BTN
5030 Sound & Transistion 2.T44 8616 5202 500 7460 152
5640 Couster & Postngs 1164 1,164
4661 Copitnl Expenditures. 0
5085 Insurance L]
5690 Interest & Bank Charges n n
5695 Licences,Regist & Membershiy ]
5700 Materia’s o Ba J404 1207 2 1107 6,191
5705 Equipment Purchases 01,28 61.253
5700 Equipment User Fee 100 34 444
5710 Janftorial Gupplins ]
5720 Property Taxes 0
5740 Wiscelanecus 1]
5760 Rent 1470 9,369 650 5 1370 13284
ST65 Repzr & Mointenance o
STT0 Vehicls Poyment ]
5T Scholarships o
5TED Telephons & Infemed 900 0,058 ™ 1388 F1 o 12,184
5785 Trovel - Air 8,575 235 B170 4,160 2535 17,888 44,681
STE3 Travel - Accommodation 13,551 10,482 138 121 3470 50 6,520 7,599 54,247
S767 Trovel - Misoge 3132 7.288 11,383 129 1,715 278 2,537 109 2,008 11463 42122
5768 Trovel - Per Diem 3853 2,716 13013 111 2832 1272 2,049 6354 43,200
&780 Chidcam n n
5700 Power ]
5781 Hoating Fus! 0
5782 Water & Sewer 1]
5784 Admin Fees 177 1,485 1,057 3618
5800 Loss in Trust Fund ]
5805 Retuned -35.351 -2.500 2232 -41,083
5350 Tronsfers between programa 61,094 61,084
$060 Economic Development 0
5970 Wags Replacements/Recoveries o
5971 LEdS Kus First Nason 444 443
50872 Deh Gah Gotie Dene Councl 66,912 11,316 80220
5073 Katiodeechs First Nation 307 n07
5374 Pehdzeh Ki First Notion 17,674 5,063 06N
5075 Kanges Tu Firsl Naton 7012 7012
5970 JMR First Naton 0,225 4,500 13,725
5977 Nahanni Butie Dene Coundd 4613 4613
$679 Ft Simpson Matis Locol 1]
5980 Ft Providence Metis ]
5881 Samboa Ko First Mation 8521 10,000 39,000 58511
5582 West Point First Notion 0
5583 Acho Dens Kos 28,435 26,435
5584 F1Liard Mets ]

Total expenditures 50, 000 224 30,000 235841 12,705 1D, 000 1] 26,700 18,800 177 817 731,870

EXCESS REVENUES

(EXPENTHTURES)| —21 30 30 30 0___? 50 20 $532 N I | W -]
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Robert

Stewart
Chartered Box 2196
Accountant/ Yellowknife, N.U.T. X1A 2P§
Managenent Tel (B867) 873-5595
Consultants Fax (867) 873-5596

Enail: stevartr@peace.ca

AUDITOR'S DERIVATIVE REPORT

To Indian and Northern Affairs Canada
4920 - 52 Street

Yellowknife, Northwest Territories

X1A 2R1

| have audited the financial statements of the DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS as at March
31, 2009, and for the year then ended, and reported on May 30, 2009.

A Schedule of Executive costs, other remuneration and travel and a Schedule of Federal
Government Funding is required to be presented to Indian and Northern Affairs Canada
pursuant to the funding agreement between Indian and Northern Affairs Canada and the
DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS. The schedules have been compiled by the management of
the DEHCHO FIRST NATIONS from their records. For the purposes of understanding
our involvement with these schedules, please note that:

¢ | have audited and separately reported on the financial statements;

¢ my audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements taken as a whole;

o the attached schedules are presented for the purpose of forming an opinion for
the Department of Indian Affairs and does not form part of the financial
statements; and

o the schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied to the
audit of the financial statements taken as a whole.

During the course of the aforementioned audit, we encountered no discrepancies on
these schedules. However, no procedures have been carried out on these schedules in
addition to those necessary to form an opinion on the financial statements.

This report has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
in Canada.

May 30, 2009 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT
Yellowknife, NW.T

Dehcho First Nations @ www.dehcho.org
Annual Report 2008-2009 AT



DEH CHO FIRST NATIONS

SCHEDULE OF EXECUTIVE COSTS, OTHER REMUNERATION AND TRAVEL

FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2009

Approved Per Diems/Other

Name Position Salary Range  Remuneration
$ $
ELECTED OR APPOINTED OFFICIALS:
Gerald Antoine Grand Chief 85,000
Berna Landry Executive/Leadership

Joanne Deneron Executive/Leadership
Margaret Leishman  Executive/Leadership

Violet Cli Executive/Leadership

Richard Lafferty Executive/Leadership

Keyna Norwegian Executive/Leadership

UNELECTED SENIOR OFFICIALS:

Ria Letcher Executive Director 83,500

Note - this is a spacial purpose statement required by the Department of Indian Affairs and
Northem Development ("DIAND" or "INAC")

www.dehcho.org /@
VIR e

2,969
3,803
2,251
2,813
2,950
1,650

SCHEDULE 8

18,619
3,005
5137

579

1,534

Dehcho First Nations

Annual Report 2008-2009



SCHEDULE 9
DEH CHO FIRST NATION

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FUNDING

FOR THE YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2009

INAC
Federal  Unexpended Total Unexpended
Funding Funding Funding Funding Funding
Name Received  Beginning Adjusiments Available Expended End of Year
Tribal Council (Band Support) $780,724 $0 $0 $780,724  $780,724 $0
Economic Development 1,000,000 150,000 0 1,150,000 77,778 1,072,222
Other 2,468,604 125,915 0 2594519 2413571 180,948
$4,249,328 $275,915 $0 $4,525243 $3,272,073 $1,253,170

Note - this is a special purpose statement required by the Department of Indian Affairs and
Northern Development ("DIAND" or "INAC")

Dehcho First Nations /@ www.dehcho.org
Annual Report 2008-2009 AT



Robert

Stewart
Chartered Box 2196
Accountant/ Yellowknife, NW.T. X1A 2P6
Management Tel (867) 873-5595
Consultants Fax (867) 873-5596

Email: stewartr@peace.ca
May 30, 2009

Graham Baptiste, Funding Services Officer
Indian and Northern Affairs Canada

4920 - 52 Street

Yellowknife, Northwest Territories

X1A 2R1

Re: DEHCHO First Nation Funding Reconciliation

At the request of DEHCHO First Nation, | provide the following responses to the new
mandatory requirement in the Year-end Reporting Handbook (#6.6) for a Funding
Reconciliation. As reported in the audited financial statements:

1. INAC Revenues per Financial Statements $ 4,249,328
Reconciling items ~ Settlement Agreement -
INAC Revenues per Funding Confirmation $ 4,249,328

2. Amounts due from INAC - current year $ 507,054
Amounts due from INAC - prior year 27,155
Amounts due from INAC - TOTAL per Note 3 $ 534,209
Amounts due to INAC 0

3. Detailed explanation of the discrepancies between the amounts stated in the
agreement and the amounts in the financial statements -- None.

4. Reference of the correspondent page of the Financial Statements — Schedules 2, 3 &
4.

5. For Block Funded or Core Funded Services, details regarding transfers of INAC
funding between Block Funded or Core Funded services -- None.

6. Other adjustments -~ None.
Yours truly,

ROBERT STEWART CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Robert A. Stewart, C.A., C.M.C.
CC. Dehcho First Nation

www.dehcho.org @ Dehcho First Nations
AT Annual Report 2008-2009



Chief Jim Antoine President Marie Lafferty Chief Dolphus Jumbo

Liidlii Kue First Nation Fort Simpson Métis Nation Sambaa K’e Dene Band

Box 469 Box 408 Box 10

Fort Simpson, NT XO0E ONO Fort Simpson, NT X0E ONO Trout Lake, NT X0E-1Z0

Tel: (867) 695-3131 Tel: (867) 695-2431 Tel: (867) 206-2800

Fax: (867) 695-2665 Fax: (867) 695-2040 Fax: (867) 206-2828

E-mail: chief@liidliikue.com E-mail: ftsimpson_metis@airware.ca E-mail: manager@sambaake.org

Fort Providence Métis Council

Chief Isadore Simon Chief Joachim Bonnetrouge President Albert Lafferty

JMR First Nation Deh Gah Gotie Dene Band Fort Providence Metis Nation
General Delivery PO Box 200 Box 319

Jean Marie River, NT X0E ONO Fort Providence, NT X0E OLO Fort Providence, NT X0E OLO

Tel: (867) 809-2000 Tel: (867) 699-7000 Tel: (867) 699-4320

Fax: (867) 809-2002 Fax: (867) 699-3134 Fax: (867) 699-4319

E-mail: chief@jmrfirstnation.com E-mail: chief@dehgahgotie.org E-mail: pvmetis@ssmicro.com

Chief Fred Tesou Chief Lloyd Chicot Chief David Etchinelle
Nahanni Butte Dene Band Ka’a’gee Tu First Nation Bedagaee Shuhagot’ine
General Delivery Box 4428 General Delivery
Nahanni Butte, NT XO0E ONO Hay River, NT X0E-1G3 Tulita, NT XOE 0KO
Tel: (867) 602-2900 Tel: (867) 825-2000 Tel: (867) 588-4535
Fax: (867) 602-2910 Fax: (867) 825-2002 Fax: (867) 588-4251
Email: fredtesou@hotmail.com E-mail: chief@kaageetu.org E-mail: N/A

Dehcho First Nations @ www.dehcho.org

Annual Report 2008-2009 AT



Chief Roy Fabian
Katlodeeche First Nation
Box 3060

Hay River, NT X0E 1G4

Tel: (867) 874-6701

Fax: (867) 874-3229

Email: hrdb@katlodeeche.com

Acting Chief Albert Moses
Pehdzeh Ki First Nation
General Delivery

Wrigley, NT XO0E 1E0

Tel: (867) 581-3321

Fax: (867) 581-3229
E-mail: N/A

President Ernie McLeod
Fort Liard Métis Nation
General Delivery

Fort Liard, NT X0E 0AOQ
Tel: (867) 770-4474

Fax: N/A

E-mail: N/A

Representative James Cayen
West Point First Nation
#1-47031 Mackenzie Highway
Hay River, NT X0E OR9

Tel: N/A

Fax: N/A

E-mail: N/A

www.dehcho.org

Grand Chief Samuel Gargan

Dehcho First Nations

P.O Box 89

Fort Simpson, NT, X0E ONO

Tel: (867) 695-2355

Fax: (867) 695-2038

E-mail:
grandchiefgargan@dehchofirstnations.com

/@ Dehcho First Nations
A= Annual Report 2008-2009
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